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GO
SEStran

South East o Scotland
Transport Partnership

HELD IN THE MANDELA ROOM, CITY CHAMBERS, EDINBURGH, EH1 1YJ
ON FRIDAY 6 MARCH 2020

ITEM 4

PERFORMANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

10AM
PRESENT: Name Organisation Title
Councillor Imrie (Chair) Midlothian Council
Councillor Balsillie Clackmannanshire Council
Councillor Dempsey Fife Council
Councillor Fullarton Scottish Borders Council
Councillor Murtagh (by Falkirk Council
telephone)
Councillor Rose City of Edinburgh Council
Barry Turner Non-Councillor Member
Dr Doreen Steel (by telephone)  Non-Councillor Member
IN L ,
ATTENDANCE: Name Organisation Title
Angela Chambers SEStran
Jim Grieve SEStran
Anna Herriman SEStran

Nicola Mackenzie
Martin Scott

lain Shaw
Dheeraj Shekhar

A1. ORDER OF BUSINESS

Scott Moncrieff

City of Edinburgh Council
City of Edinburgh Council
City of Edinburgh Council

Action by

It was confirmed that there was no change to the order of business.

A2. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Callum Hay, Simon Hindshaw and

Gavin King.

A3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

None.

A4. MINUTES

Decision

The minute of the Performance and Audit Committee of 22 November
2019 was approved as a correct record.



A5.

A6.

Audit Plans

(a) External Audit Plan 2019/20

A summary of the work plan for the 2019/20 external audit of
the South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (“the
Partnership”) was provided.

Decision
To note the report.
Declaration of Interest

Councillor Cameron Rose declared a non-financial interest as
a member of the Lothian Pension Fund Committee.

(Reference — report by the External Auditor, submitted)

(b) Internal Audit 2019/20

An update on the outcomes of the 2019/20 SEStran Internal
Audit review was provided. Members were invited to provide
insights on areas for potential inclusion in the scope of the
planned 2020/21 audit.

Decision

1) To note the outcomes of the 2019/20 Internal Audit review.

(Reference — report by the Chief Internal Auditor, submitted)

Finance Reports

(a) Revenue Budget 2020/21

Details were provided of the revenue budget for 2020/21 for
review by the Committee.

Decision

1) To note the financial planning assumptions for the
Partnership’s revenue budget for 2020/21.



AT.

2) To note that financial planning for 2021/22 to 2022/23
would be developed throughout 2020 for consideration by
the Partnership in autumn 2020.

3) To note that the proposed budget was subject to a number
of risks and that all income and expenditure of the
Partnership would continue to be monitored closely with
updates reported to each Partnership meeting.

(Reference — report by the Treasurer, submitted)

(b) Annual Treasury Management Strategy

Details were provided on the proposed Investment Strategy for
2020/21.

Decision

To refer the Strategy to the Partnership Board to approve the
continuation of the current arrangement, as outlined in
Appendix 1.

(Reference — report by the Treasurer, submitted)
(c) Reserves Policy

The Scottish Government had advised that the Transport
(Scotland) Act 2019 was to be enacted on 19 March 2020.
The Partnership was recommended to approve a Reserves
Policy, given the amendments to Regional Transport
Partnerships powers included in the Act.

Decision
To note the report.
(Reference — report by the Treasurer, submitted)
NEW REGIONAL TRANSPORT STRATEGY (RTS) UPDATE

An update was provided on the work to develop the new Regional
Transport Strategy (RTS), as agreed by the Board on 21 June
including progress on the first, preliminary stage of the RTS, and
clarification on the next steps for the RTS.

The update included details on the national context for the RTS
rewrite, including legislative changes with relevance to the operation
of Regional Transport Partnership.



A8.

A9.

A10.

Decision

To note the report.

(Reference — report by the Senior Partnership Manager, submitted)
DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN

The first draft of SEStran’s Business Plan for 2020/21 was submitted.

Following a wide-ranging discussion and exchange of views, the
following key points emerged:

How would the hydrogen versus electric vehicle debate be
included in future business plans?

e An electric vehicle strategy and hydrogen strategy were being
worked on but were not included in the business plan

¢ A hydrogen filling station had opened in Wallyford which was
fully funded by the private sector. Larger vehicles were moving
towards hydrogen and to be aware of this in SEStran’s
strategic planning

e Any questions prior to the Board meeting would be welcome.
Decision
To note the Draft Business Plan 2020/21.
(Reference — report by the Senior Partnership Manager, submitted)
PROJECTS PERFORMANCE & EU EXIT UPDATE

An update was provided on the progress of the various projects
SEStran was involved in and covered the position on the EU exit
process.

Decision

To note the update.

(Reference — report by the Senior Partnership Manager, submitted)
CYBER RESILIENCE UPDATE

An update was provided on the ongoing Cyber Resilience
programme of work being undertaken by SEStran.



Decision

To note the report.

(Reference — report by the Business Manager, submitted)
A10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Friday 5 June 2020 at 10.00am in the Mandela Room, City Chambers,
Edinburgh, EH1 1YJ.
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Unaudited Annual Accounts 2019/20
1. Introduction

1.1 This report presents present the unaudited Annual Accounts for the year
ended 31st March 2020. The unaudited accounts are appended.

2. Main Report

21 The unaudited Annual Accounts are submitted to the Partnership in
accordance with the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014.
The accounts are subject to audit and the audited Annual Accounts,
incorporating the Auditor’s report, will be presented to the Performance and
Audit Committee and Partnership Board in due course.

2.2 The Treasurer’'s opinion on the effectiveness of the Partnership’s system of
internal financial control is provided within the Annual Governance Statement
on pages 6 to 8. The Treasurer’s opinion is informed by the work of Internal
Audit and managers in the Partnership.

2.3 The Management Commentary is on pages 2 to 4 of the Annual Accounts.
This highlights key aspects of financial performance during the year. The
unaudited underspend is £163,000, which comprises an underspend of
£13,000 on the Core revenue budget and slippage of £150,000 on the
Projects budget. Under the Partnership’s Reserves Policy, it is planned to
carry forward these balances to 2020/21.

3 Recommendations
It is recommended that the Performance and Audit Committee:

3.1 note the unaudited Annual Accounts for 2019/20 and refer the Unaudited
Accounts to the Partnership Board for review;

3.2 notes that the audited Annual Accounts, incorporating the Auditor’s report,
will be presented to the Performance and Audit Committee and Partnership
Board in due course.

Hugh Dunn
Treasurer
5th June 2020

Appendix Unaudited Annual Accounts 2019/20
Contact iain.shaw@edinburgh.gov.uk



There are no policy implications arising as a

Policy Implications result of this report.

Financial Implications There are no financial implications arising.

There are no equality implications arising as a

Equalities Implications result of this report.

There are no climate change implications arising

Climate Change Implications as a result of this report.




The South East of Scotland
Transport Partnership
(SESTRAN)

Unaudited
Annual Accounts

2019/2020



The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

CONTENTS

Management Commentary

Statement of Responsibilities for the Annual Accounts

Annual Governance Statement

Remuneration Report

Accounting Statements and Notes to the Annual Accounts:

Annual Accounts;

1. Movement in Reserves Statement for the year ended 31st
March 2020

2. Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement for the year
ended 31st March 2020

3. Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020

4. Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

Statement of Accounting Policies

Notes to the Annual Accounts

Page 1

2-4

6-8

9-10

11

12

13

14

15-18

19-44

11



The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

Management Commentary
1. Basis of Accounts

The Partnership prepares its Annual Accounts in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom. The Code of Practice is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

2. Statutory Background

The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN) was established under the Regional Transport Partnerships
(Establishment, Constitution and Membership) (Scotland) Order 2005. The Partnership came into force on 1st December 2005.
Under Section 3 of the Transport (Scotland) Act 2005, the net expenses of SESTRAN, after allowing for government grant and any
other income, are met by its constituent councils.

In accordance with Section 122 of the Transport (Scotland) Act 2019, which allows Regional Transport Partnerships to carry
forward reserves, the Partnership has now established a General Fund reserve. This provision in the Transport (Scotland) Act 2019
came into effect on 19 March 2020, and is available to Regional Transport Partnerships for financial years 2019/20 and onwards.

3. Corporate Strategy

The following is an introductory extract from the Transport (Scotland) Act 2005, which established the Partnership; one of seven
Scottish Regional Transport Partnerships (RTPs):

“An Act of the Scottish Parliament to provide for the setting up and functions of the new transport bodies and to enable the
Scottish Ministers to discharge certain transport functions; to provide further for the control and co-ordination of road works and
for the enforcement of the duties placed on those who carry them out; to set up national concessionary fares schemes; and to
make other, miscellaneous modifications of the law relating to transport.”

The Partnership aims to develop a sustainable transportation system for South East Scotland that will enable business to function
effectively, and provide everyone living in the region with improved access to healthcare, education, public services and
employment opportunities. These aims are embodied in the Regional Transport Strategy (RTS).

The constituent councils of the Partnership are the City of Edinburgh, Clackmannanshire, East Lothian, Falkirk, Fife, Midlothian,
Scottish Borders and West Lothian.

SEStran’s Vision Statement is as follows:

“A regional transport system that provides all citizens of South East Scotland with a genuine choice of transport which fulfils their
needs and provides travel opportunities for work and leisure on a sustainable basis.”

4. Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Partnership fall into two categories.

Firstly, there is the funding uncertainty faced by all local authorities and RTPs. The Partnership has a range of statutory duties to
enact. While every attempt is made to do this within the budget provided, budget reductions may make this less achievable

The second category relates to changes in legislation leading to changes in the services to be delivered. This can create pressures
from both a financial and organisational perspective.

5. Results for the Year

The Partnership is required to present its financial performance as a Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
This can be seen on page 12. To show the net position of the Partnership and to allow comparison with the approved revenue
budget, it is necessary to adjust the expenditure shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to take account

Page 2
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

Management Commentary (continued)

5. Results for the Year (continued)

The net revenue budget of the Partnership in 2019/20 was £0.972m, funded by Government Grant and Council
Contributions. A comparison of the outturn position with the revenue budget is presented in the table below. Key
aspects of financial performance in 2019/20 are:

Overall the Partnership had an underspend of £163,000 which is shown in the table below. The underspend arose
due to a combination of underspends on the core revenue budget, projects budget and the RTPI project budget;

e The Partnership incurred core service expenditure of £0.517m which was £67,000 below the revised Core Service
revenue budget. This underspend mainly reflected decreased expenditure on staff costs, marketing costs and
computer costs;

e The Partnership incurred expenditure of £1.528m on revenue projects and received external grants and
contributions of £1.256m, resulting in net expenditure of £0.272m. Net expenditure was £36,000 under budget. The
main favourable variance on the Projects revenue budget arose on the Sustainable and Active Travel grants
programme;

e Expenditure of £31,000 on the Real-Time Passenger Information (RTPI) project was partly funded by contributions
of £10,000 from other parties, resulting in net expenditure of £21,000. Net expenditure was £59,000 under budget.

Revised
Budget Outturn Variance
£'000 £'000 £'000

Core Service 584 517 (67)
Revenue Projects - Net Expenditure 308 272 (36)
RTPI Project - Net Expenditure 80 21 (59)
Net Interest 0 (1) (2)
Total Expenditure 2019/20 972 809 (163)
Government Grant (782) (782) 0
Constituent Council Requisitions (190) (190) 0
Total Government Grant and Council

Contributions 2019/20 (972) (972) 0

In accordance with the provisions of the Transport Scotland (2019) Act, the Partnership has agreed a Reserves Policy
and established an unallocated reserve of £13,000 and an earmarked balance of £150,000 to meet slippage on project
delivery from 2019/20 to 2020/21.

Non Financial Results

During 2019/20, the Partnership published a Main Issues Report that sets out issues for the next Regional Transport

Strategy.

The Partnership remained successful in attracting funding and delivering region-specific strategies, studies and services

of benefit to transport users and partners across the region.

e The Partnership delivered the SEStran Strategic Network study, providing a framework for active travel routes across
the region, including further design for a route from Cameron Toll to the BioQuarter, with funding from Transport
Scotland;

e Sustrans Scotland funding was used to allow the Partnership to complete feasibility studies for Winchburgh to
Kirkliston, Sheriffhall to the BioQuarter, and Kirkcaldy to Buckhaven routes;

e A GO e-bike share system for four hubs across East Lothian and Midlothian, utilising match funding from Low Carbon
Travel and Transport Fund. An additional grant from Transport Scotland was used towards e-bike hubs and facilities
in Edinburgh and Scottish Borders;

Page 3
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

Management Commentary (continued)
5. Results for the Year (continued)
Non Financial Results (continued)

e Transport Scotland’s direct Active Travel funding allowed the Partnership to conclude five feasibility studies
for key routes in the region, including A701 Straiton to The Bush, A9 Larbert to Stirling, Dalkeith, Shawfair
and Little France. Additionally, the technical design for the Kirkcaldy to Buckhaven route and a placemaking
design for Alloa town centre were delivered;
¢ The Thistle Assistance scheme was rebranded, with a new app, website and awareness campaign and
10,000 new cards issued. This was made possible through Scottish Enterprise and Transport Scotland
funding. The concept for an inclusive Journey Planning App was also developed, for users with a wide range
of technology adaptation and accessibility needs;
e With support and funding from Inclusion Scotland, the Partnership was able to offer a short-term Marketing Internship
that commenced in November 2019;

SHARE-North funding was utilised to promote shared mobility, through Tripshare SEStran and GO e-Bike in particular. The
Partnership also exchanged knowledge with SHARE-North partners for the implementation of Mobility Hubs;

¢ PriMaaS funding allowed the Partnership to begin exchanging knowledge and best practice in the development of regional
policies to support Mobility-as-a-Service;

¢ Surflogh funding was used to continue the first mile / last mile sustainable delivery trial with ZEDIFY, moving an average of
one pallet of goods per day in the central Edinburgh area;

e BLING funding enabled further development of the Blockchain pilot being run through the University of Edinburgh, testing
the potential to use this technology to support the sustainable movement and consignment of small goods in a real-world
setting;

¢ Funding from Transport Scotland’s LEZ support fund enabled the Partnership to complete a Park and Ride Strategy, a
Mobility Hubs Strategy and Demand Responsive Transport study. The funding also enabled investment in assets for the
RTPI system;

¢ Local Rail Development Fund support from Transport Scotland was used to deliver a multi-modal transport appraisal for
Newburgh, in partnership with the Newburgh Train Station Group and Fife Council.

6. Future Developments

The impacts from Covid-19 on the Partnership were first noted towards the end of the 2019/20 year, with the advent of fully
home-based working. Ensuring the health, safety and well-being of staff remains the utmost priority and the organisation will
respond to all physical distancing requirements set out by Government, once a return to office-based working is safe and
possible.

Through some modifications to project methodologies and by making the most of available technologies to support
consultation, engagement and project meetings, it has so far been possible to progress all areas of the Partnership’s work.

However, the impacts from Covid-19 on the entire transport sector, and the context in which all the Partnership’s work is
progressed, are very significant. It is too early to confirm how regional transport strategic planning, delivery and operations
will need to respond, but some impacts and changes may last for years to come. Covid-19 is therefore rightly recognised
within the Main Issues Report and will be considered within the development of the new Regional Transport Strategy.

The Partnership, alongside other RTPs in Scotland, will continue to work closely with Transport Scotland and partner Councils
to continually re-evaluate and respond to the new context for transport as it evolves.

It is considered appropriate to adopt a going concern basis for the preparation of the Annual Accounts.

Page 4
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

The Partnership's Responsibilities

The Partnership is required:

e to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that the proper

officer has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Partnership, that officer is the
Treasurer;

e to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of its resources and safeguard its
assets;

e to ensure the Annual Accounts are prepared in accordance with legislation (The Local Authority
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014) and so far as is compatible with that legislation, in

accordance with proper accounting practices (section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act
2003);

e to approve the Annual Accounts.

The Treasurer's Responsibilities

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Partnership's Annual Accounts in accordance with
proper practices as required by legislation and as set out in the CIPFA / LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom ('the Code').

In preparing the Annual Accounts, the Treasurer has:

selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

complied with legislation;

complied with the Local Authority Accounting Code (in so far it is compatible with legislation)

The Treasurer has also:

e kept adequate accounting records which were up to date;
e taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

| certify that the Annual Accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Partnership at the
reporting date and the transactions of the Partnership for the year ended 31st March 2020.

Treasurer: HUGH DUNN, CPFA Date signed: 19th June 2020

Page 5
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20

1. Scope of Responsibility
The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership’s aim is to develop a transportation system for South East Scotland as
outlined in the Partnership’s Regional Transport Strategy 2015-2025.

The Partnership is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and appropriate
standards, that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently, effectively and
ethically. The Partnership also has a duty to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way its functions
are carried out.

In discharging these overall responsibilities Elected Members and Senior Officers are responsible for implementing proper
arrangements for the governance of the Partnership’s affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, including
arrangements for the management of risk.

The Partnership has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance which is consistent with appropriate
corporate governance principles and reflects the requirements of the "Delivering Good Governance in Local Government:
Framework (2016)" .

This Statement explains how the Partnership delivers good governance and reviews the effectiveness of these arrangements.
It also includes a statement on internal financial control in accordance with proper practice.

The Partnership’s financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on
the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2016).

2. The Partnership’s Governance Framework
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the Partnership is
directed and controlled, and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and influences the community. It
enables the Partnership to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have
led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The framework reflects the arrangements in place to meet the six supporting principles of effective corporate
governance:

e Focusing on the purpose of the Partnership and on outcomes for the community, and creating and implementing
a vision for the local area;

e Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles;

® Promoting values for the Partnership and demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding
high standards of conduct and behaviour;

e Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk;

o Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective;

e Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability.

A significant part of the governance framework is the system of internal control which is based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and manage the risks to the achievement of the Partnership’s policies, aims and objectives. These are

defined in the Partnership’s Business Plan, which is updated annually. This enables the Partnership to manage its key risks
efficiently, effectively, economically and ethically.

Page 6
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20 (continued)

2. The Partnership’s Governance Framework (continued)
Within the overall control arrangements the system of internal financial control is intended to ensure that assets are
safeguarded, transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and material errors or irregularities are either prevented
or would be detected within a timely period. It is based on a framework of regular management information, financial
regulations, administrative procedures and management supervision.

While the system of internal control is designed to manage risk at a reasonable level it cannot eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance of
effectiveness.

3. Determining the Partnership’s purpose, its vision for the local area and intended outcomes for the Community
The Partnership aims to develop a transportation system for South East Scotland which will enable businesses to function
effectively and provide everyone living in the Region with improved access to health care, education, public services and
employment opportunities. The vision for achieving this is outlined in the Regional Transport Strategy.

The Business Plan defines how to implement the aims of this strategy and the Annual Report provides a report of

performance against objectives, targets and performance indicators as outlined in the Regional Transport Strategy.

4. Review of Effectiveness
The Partnership has put in place arrangements, detailed in the Local Code, for monitoring each element of the framework
and providing evidence of compliance. A Principal Officer within the Partnership has been nominated to review the
effectiveness of the Local Code .

The review of the effectiveness of its governance framework, including the system of internal financial control is informed
by:

e the work of Internal Audit on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Partnership’s control environment, governance and
risk management frameworks;

e the Partnership Director’s Certificate of Assurance on internal control;

e the operation and monitoring of controls by Partnership managers;

e the External Auditors in their Annual Audit Letter and other reports; and
e other inspection agencies comments and reports.

Through the year Elected Members and Officers have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
governance environment. These review mechanisms include:

e The Partnership Board, which provides strategic leadership, determines policy aims and objectives and takes executive
decisions not delegated to officers. It provides political accountability for the Partnership’s performance;

o The Performance and Audit Committee, which demonstrates the Partnership’s commitment to the principles of good
governance. It scrutinises the running of the Partnership and suggests improvements;

e Internal Audit provides an independent and objective assurance service to the Partnership, by completing one review in
each financial year that is focused on the adequacy and effectiveness of controls established to manage a key risk of the
Partnership;

Page 7
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20 (continued)

4. Review of Effectiveness (continued)

e The External Auditor’s Annual Audit Report is considered by the Partnership Board and the Performance and Audit
Committee, along with the output from other external audits and inspections;

e The risk management system requires that risks are regularly reviewed by the Performance and Audit Committee and
Board. This ensures that actions are taken to effectively manage the Partnership’s highest risks;

o The Partnership Secretary is responsible to the Partnership for ensuring that agreed procedures are followed. The
Partnership has a contractual arrangement with an external Legal Services provider to ensure all applicable statutes and
regulations are complied with.

5. Internal Audit Opinion
During the year, Internal Audit completed one review that assessed the design adequacy of governance arrangements and
stakeholder engagement plans supporting the new Regional Transport Strategy (RTS) development and considered whether
the project is being delivered in line with applicable guidance and legislative requirements. The design adequacy and
operating effectiveness of key third-party supplier management controls in relation to third parties engaged to support the
new RTS was also considered. The audit highlighted that whilst some moderate control weaknesses were identified in the
design of the governance and risk management frameworks established to support delivery of the first stage of the RTS
rewrite project, the established governance and risk management frameworks provided reasonable assurance that project
risks are being managed and that the Partnership's objectives to deliver a new strategy based on Main Issues Report
outcomes should be achieved.

6. Coronavirus Pandemic
The coronavirus pandemic has required changes to governance arrangements. This Governance Statement provides
assurance over the governance arrangements that have been in place for the majority of 2019/20. The meeting of the
Partnership, which was due to take place on 20th March 2020 was cancelled due to the pandemic. Decisions due to be taken
at that meeting were dealt with as Items of Urgency under the provisions of the Partnership's Standing Orders; this after
consultation with the Partnership Board. During the period of pandemic lockdown, the Partnership is planning to facilitate
future meetings of the Partnership Board and Performance and Audit Committee using electronic technology.

7. Certification
In compliance with accounting practice, the Treasurer has provided the Partnership Director with a statement on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal financial control system for the year ended 31st March 2020. It is
the Treasurer’s opinion that reasonable assurance can be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the Partnership’s
internal control system.

8. From this year’s review, there is reasonable assurance that the Local Code of Corporate Governance is operating adequately,
with overall compliance by the Partnership with its corporate governance arrangements.

Page 8
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

REMUNERATION REPORT

1. Remuneration Policy for Senior Employees

The Partnership Board determines remuneration for senior employees with reference to the level of responsibility of the
post. The Partnership does not operate a Remuneration Committee. Annual inflationary increases are based on those
agreed by the Scottish Joint Negotiating Committee (SINC) for Local Authority services.

2. Remuneration for Senior Councillors
The Partnership does not provide any remuneration to senior councillors.
Expenses paid to Board members are detailed in note 19 to the annual accounts.

3. Management of Remuneration Arrangements
The remuneration of the Partnership's employees is administered by the City of Edinburgh Council, as part of a
service level agreement with the Partnership.

4. Officers Remuneration
The numbers of employees whose remuneration during the year exceeded £50,000 were as follows:

Remuneration Bands 2019/20 2018/19
£70,000 - £74,999 0 1
£75,000 - £79,999 1 0
£95,000 - £99,999 0 1

5. Senior Employees Remuneration
The remuneration paid to the Partnership's senior employees is as follows:

Salary, Fees Total Total

and Remuneration = Remuneration

Allowances Compensation 2019/20 2018/19

Name and Post Title £ £ £ £

Jim Grieve - Partnership Director 78,994 0 78,994 74,975

George Eckton - Partnership Director 0 0 0 99,896
to 29/11/18 *

78,994 0 78,994 174,871

* full time equivalent 2018/19 salary - George Eckton (£79,661)

The senior employees detailed above have/ had responsibility for management of the Partnership to the extent that they
have power to direct or control the major activities of the Partnership (including activities involving the expenditure of
money), during the year to which the Remuneration Report relates, whether solely or collectively with other persons.

In 2018/19, the previous Partnership Director resigned on 29th November 2018. The Partnership's Head of Programmes
undertook the duties of the Director's post until his appointment as Partnership Director on 3rd May 2019.

6. Senior Emplovees Pension Entitlement
The pension entitlement of the Partnership's senior employee(s) is as follows:

Accrued pension benefits
In-year pension contributions

As at Difference from

2019/20 2018/19 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Name and Post Title £ £ £'000 £'000

George Eckton - 0 11,885 Pension 0 18

Partnership Director (to 29/11/18) Lump Sum 0 16
0 11,885

The senior employee shown in the table above is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).
The Partnership makes no pension contributions for Jim Grieve, nor is he in receipt of pension entitlement.

Page 9
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)

7. Pension Entitlement

Pension benefits for the Partnership's employees are provided through the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).

For the Partnership's employees, the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) became a career average pay scheme on 1
April 2015. Benefits built up to 31 March 2015 are protected and based on final salary. Accrued benefits from 1 April 2015
will be based on career average salary.

The scheme’s normal retirement age for employees is linked to the state pension age (but with a minimum of age 65).

From 1 April 2009 a five tier contribution system was introduced with contributions from scheme members being based on
how much pay falls into each tier. This is designed to give more equality between the cost and benefits of scheme
membership. Prior to 2009 contributions rates were set at 6% for all non-manual employees.

The tiers and members contributions rates for 2019-20 were as follows:
Contribution

Whole Time Pay rate
On earnings up to and including £21,800 (2018/2019 £21,300) 5.50%
On earnings above £21,800 and up to £26,700 (2018/2019 £21,300 to £26,100) 7.25%
On earnings above £26,700 and up to £36,600 (2018/2019 £26,100 to £35,700) 8.50%
On earnings above £36,600 and up to £48,800 (2018/2019 £35,700 to £47,600) 9.50%
On earnings above £48,800 (2018/2019 £47,600) 12.00%

From April 2015, when allocating contribution rates to members, pensionable pay means the actual pensionable pay,
regardless of hours worked.

There is no automatic entitlement to a lump sum for members who joined the scheme post April 2009. Members may opt to
give up (commute) pension for lump sum or bigger lump sum up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004.

The value of the accrued benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which the person will first become entitled
to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on account of its payment at that age; without exercising any option to
commute pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for the effects of future inflation - assuming
that the person left the related employment or service as at 31st March in the year to which the value relates.

8. Exit Packages
Exit packages include compulsory and voluntary redundancy costs, pension contributions in respect of added

years, ex-gratia payments and other departure costs.

Number of Number of Total Number of Total Cost of
Exit Package Compulsory Other Agreed Exit Packages Exit Packages in
Cost Band Redundancies Departures by Cost Band Each Band
£'000 £'000
All Cost Bands 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

All information disclosed in the tables at paragraphs 4, 5, 6 and 8 in this Remuneration Report will be audited.
The other sections of the Remuneration Report will be reviewed by the appointed auditor to ensure that they
are consistent with the annual accounts.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement in the year on different reserves held by the Partnership, analysed into "Usable Reserves" (that is, those

that can be applied to fund expenditure) and "Unusable Reserves". The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true
economic cost of providing the Partnership's services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance before any discretionary
transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Partnership.

2018/19 - Previous Year Year Comparative

Opening Balances at 1 April 2018
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under
regulations (Note 7)

Increase/Decrease in 2018/19

Balance at 31 March 2019 carried forward

2019/20 - Current Financial Year

Opening Balances at 1 April 2019
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under
regulations (Note 7)

Increase/Decrease in 2019/20

Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward

General Total Unusable Total
Fund Usable Reserves Partnership
Balance Reserves Reserves
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
0 0 (247) (247)
(147) (147) (127) (274)
147 147 (147) 0
0 0 (274) (274)
0 0 (521) (521)
[ Usable Reserves
General Total Unusable Total
Fund Usable Reserves Partnership
Balance Reserves Reserves
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
(] ] (521) (521)
66 66 241 307
97 97 (97) 0
163 163 144 307
163 163 (377) (214)
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 2019/20

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather
than the amount to be funded by government grant, council requisitions and other income.

2018/19 2019/20

Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net

Expenditure Income| Expenditure Expenditure Income| Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000|Services £'000 £'000 £'000

719 (1) 718|core 693 (4) 689

678 (335) 343 |Projects 1,462 (1,266) 196

1,397 (336) 1,061|Cost Of Services 2,155 (1,270) 885

73 (55) 18|Financing & Investment Income (Note 9) 75 (54) 21

0 (932) (932)|Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (Note 10) 0 (972) (972)

1,470 (1,323) 147|(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 2,230 (2,296) (66)
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

0 0 0|Change in Demographic Assumptions 0 0 0

264 0 264|Change in Financial Assumptions 0 (369) (369)

0 0 0|Other Experience 0 (18) (18)

0 (137) (137)|Return on Assets excluding amounts included in net 146 0 146

interest
264 (137) 127|Total Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 146 (387) (241)
1,734 (1,460) 274|Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 2,376 (2,683) (307)
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Partnership. The net assets
of the Partnership (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Partnership. Reserves are reported in two categories.
The first category of reserves are usable reserves, that is, those reserves that the Partnership may use to provide services, subject to the
need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use. The Partnership does not have powers to
maintain a usable reserve. The second category of reserves are those that the Partnership is not able to use to provide services. This
category of reserves include reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example, the Capital Adjustment Account Reserve),
where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown
in the Movement in Reserves Statement line "Adustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations".

31 March 31 March
2019 2020
£'000 Note £'000
352 Property, plant and equipment 11 309
352 Long term assets 309
514 Short-term debtors 13 773
0 Provision for Bad Debts 14 0
279 Cash and cash equivalents 15 151
793 Current assets 924
(190) Contributions and Grants Received in Advance 0
(609) Short-term creditors 16 (771)
(799) Current liabilities (771)
(867) Other long-term liabilities (Pensions) 24 (676)
(867) Long-term liabilities (676)
(521) Net assets/ (liabilities) (214)
Financed by:
0 Usable reserves 17 163
(521) Unusable reserves 18 (377)
(521) Total reserves (214)

The unaudited Annual Accounts were issued on the 19th June 2020.

Treasurer: HUGH DUNN, CPFA Date signed: 19th June 2020
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Partnership during the reporting period. The statement
shows how the Partnership generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flow arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Partnership are funded by way of government grant income, council requisitions and recipients of services provided by the Partnership.
Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the
Partnership's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by
providers of capital (that is, borrowing) to the Partnership.

31 March
2019
£'000

31 March
2019
£'000

(1,369)

1,790

421

421

700

279

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Government Grants
Constituent Council Requisitions

Interest paid/ (received)
Other receipts from operating activities

Cash inflows generated from operating activities

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services

Cash outflows generated from operating activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows from investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Other receipts from financing activities

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net( increase)/ decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period (Note 15)

31 March 31 March
2020 2020
£'000 £'000
(782)
(190)
(1)
(842)
(1,815)
488
1,393
1,881
66
62
62
0
0
128
279
151
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

1.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

a)

b)

1.6

1.7

Accounting Policies

The Annual Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
based Code of Practice in the United Kingdom (the Code). This is to ensure that the Annual Accounts "present a true and
fair view" of the financial position and transactions of the Partnership.

The Annual Accounts have been prepared on an historic cost basis, modified by the valuation of pension assets and
liabilities and property, plant and equipment, where appropriate.

Revenue Expenditure

Revenue expenditure is that which does not yield benefit beyond the year of account. In broad terms the revenue
expenditure of the Partnership can be divided into two categories:
e employees;
e day-to-day operating expenses, includes costs incurred in respect of office accommodation
transport, ICT, and project expenditure.

Revenue Income

Revenue income is that which does not yield benefit beyond the year of account. In broad terms the revenue income of
the Partnership can be divided into the following categories:

e  Council requisitions, which fund day to day expenditure;

e  European Union and other grant income awarded to fund specific projects;

e otherincome recoveries to fund specific projects.

Accruals of Expenditure and Income

The revenue account has been prepared on an accruals basis in accordance with the Code of Practice. Amounts
estimated to be due to or from the Partnership, which are still outstanding at the year end, are included in the accounts.
Government Grants have been accounted for on an accruals basis.

Operating Leases

Leased-in assets
Rental payments under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on a
straight line basis over the life of the lease.

Leased-out assets
The Partnership has not identified any leased-out assets that fall under the definition of operating leases.

Overheads

The cost of service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement includes the Partnership's overheads.

Charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for use of non-current assets

Charges are made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the use of non-current assets, through
depreciation charges. The aggregate charge to individual services is determined on the basis of the assets used in each
service.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.8 Employee Benefits
Pensions
The Partnership is an admitted body to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) which is administered by
the Lothian Pension Fund. The LGPS is a defined benefit statutory scheme, administered in accordance with the
Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 1998, as amended.
The Annual Accounts have been prepared including pension costs, as determined under International Accounting
Standard 19 — Employee Benefits (IAS 19). The cost of service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement includes expenditure equivalent to the amount of retirement benefits the Partnership has committed
to during the year. Pensions interest cost and the expected return on pension assets have been included in the
“Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services” within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The pension costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in respect of employees are
not equal to contributions paid to the funded scheme for employees. The amount by which pension costs under
IAS19 are different from the contributions due under the pension scheme regulations are disclosed in the
Movement in Reserves Statement for the General Fund.
Pension assets have been valued at bid value (purchase price), as required under IAS19.
Under pension regulations, contribution rates are set to meet 100% of the overall liabilities of the Fund.
Accruals of Holiday Leave
Cost of service includes a charge for annual leave to which employees are entitled, but have not taken as at the
Balance Sheet date. The Partnership is not required to raise requisitions on constituent councils to cover the cost
of accrued annual leave. These costs are therefore replaced by revenue provision in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the General Fund balance by way of an adjusting transaction with the Accumulated Absence
Account.

1.9 Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment is categorised into the following classes:

e Vehicles, plant and equipment;
e Assets under construction;

Recognition:

e  Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment has been
capitalised on an accruals basis;

Depreciation:

e Depreciation is provided on all Property, Plant and Equipment;

e The Partnership provides depreciation on its Property, Plant and Equipment from the month when it
comes into use. Thereafter depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the expected life of the
asset. No depreciation is provided on Assets Under Construction.

Measurement:
Property, Plant and Equipment are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of net current replacement cost or
net realisable value in existing use, net of depreciation.

1.10 Government Grants and Other Contributions

® Revenue
Revenue grants and other contributions have been included in the financial statements on an accruals basis.
Where such funds remain unapplied at the Balance Sheet date, but approval has been given to carry these funds
forward to the next financial year, the funds have been accrued.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.10 Government Grants and Other Contributions (continued)
e Capital
Capital grants and contributions are recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, except to the
extent there are conditions attached to them that have not been met.
Where there are no conditions attached to capital grants and contributions, these funds are a reconciling item in the
Movement in Reserves Statement by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital adjustment account where
expenditure has been incurred and the unapplied capital grants account, where expenditure has not been incurred.
Where there are outstanding conditions attached to capital grants and contributions that have not been met by the
Balance Sheet date, the grant or the contribution will be recognised as part of capital grants in advance. Once the
condition has been met, the grant or contribution will be transferred from capital grants received in advance and
recognised as income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
1.11 Provisions
Provisions are made for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount that have been incurred.
The value of provisions is based upon the Partnership’s obligations arising from past events, the probability that a transfer
of economic benefit will take place, and a reasonable estimate of the obligation.
1.12 Reserves
Reserves held on the Balance Sheet are classified as either usable or unusable. Unusable reserves cannot be applied to
fund expenditure. The Transport Scotland (2019) Act permits the Partnership to operate a usable reserve. In March 2020 a
Reserves Policy was approved, permitting the Partnership to hold a general reserve with a minimum value of 5% of annual
Core budget. Balances held in excess of 5% require to be reviewed annually in-line with risk/identified commitments. The
Partnership also operates a General Fund reserve to manage slippage on approved Project budget delivery.
The Partnership operates the following unusable reserves:
a) Pension Reserve
The Partnership operates a Pensions Reserve Fund under the terms of the Local Government Pension Reserve Fund
(Scotland) Regulations 2003. The Pension Reserve represents the net monies which the Partnership requires to meet its
net pension liability as calculated under IAS 19, Employee Benefits;
b) Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account represents movement in the funding of assets arising either from capital resources such
as capital receipts, or capital funded directly from revenue contributions;
c) Accumulated Absences Account
This represents the net monies which the Partnership requires to meet its short-term compensated absences for
employees under 1AS19.
1.13 Financial Instruments

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.
Surplus funds held on behalf of the Partnership are managed by the City of Edinburgh Council under a formal management
agreement in a pooled investment arrangement.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.14 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include:
e Credit and debit funds held in banks

1.15 Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Partnership a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Partnership.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

1.16 Value Added Tax
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty's Revenue and
Customs.

1.17 Events After the Reporting Period
Events after the reporting period are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of
the reporting period and the date when the Annual Accounts are authorised for issue.
Two types of events can be identified:
i) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the Annual Accounts are
adjusted to reflect such events;
ii) those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the Annual Accounts are not adjusted
to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of
the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Annual Accounts.

1.18 Short Term Debtors and Short Term Creditors
The revenue transactions of the Partnership are recorded on an accruals basis which means that amounts due to or
from the Partnership, but still outstanding at the year end, are included in the accounts. Where there was insufficient
information available to provide actual figures, estimates have been included.

1.19 Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides
more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the
Partnership's financial position or performance.
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively; i.e. in the current and future years affected by the
change.
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and
comparative amounts for the prior period.

1.20 Going Concern

It is considered appropriate to adopt a going concern basis for the preparation of the Annual Accounts, given
ongoing Regional Transport Partnership grant funding provided by Scottish Ministers under Section 70 of the
Transport (Scotland) Act 2001 and constituent councils obligation to meet the net expenses of the Partnership under
Section 3 of the Transport (Scotland) Act 2005.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

2.

EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources by the
Partnership in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by the Partnership in accordance with general
accounting practice. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between service areas.
Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) (see page 12).

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

2019/20

Core
Projects

Net Cost of Services

Other Income and Expenditure
Government grant
Constituent council requisitions
Interest Received
Net pension interest cost

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services

2018/19

Core
Projects

Net Cost of Services

Other Income and Expenditure
Government grant
Constituent council requisitions
Interest Received
Net pension interest cost

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services

Net Expenditure Adjustments Net
Chargeable to the Expenditure
General Fund in the CIES
£'000 £'000 £'000

517 172 689

293 (97) 196

810 75 885

(782) 0 (782)

(190) 0 (190)

(1) 0 (1)

0 22 22

(163) 97 (66)

Net Expenditure Adjustments Net
Chargeable to the Expenditure
General Fund in the CIES
£'000 £'000 £'000

544 174 718

389 (46) 343

933 128 1,061

(782) 0 (782)

(150) 0 (150)

(1) 0 (1)

0 19 19

0 147 147
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

2.

EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS (continued)

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)

2.1 Adjustments from the General Fund to arrive at the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

amounts:

2019/20

Core
Projects

Net Cost of Services

Other Income and Expenditure
Net pension interest cost

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services

2018/19

Core
Projects

Net Cost of Services

Other Income and Expenditure
Net pension interest cost

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services

Adjusts. For Net Change for Other Total Statutory

Capital Pensions  Differences Adjusts.
Purposes Adjusts.

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

140 28 4 172

(97) 0 0 (97)

43 28 4 75

0 22 0 22

43 50 4 97

Adjusts. For Net Change for Other Total Statutory

Capital Pensions  Differences Adjusts.
Purposes Adjusts.

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

116 59 (1) 174

(46) 0 0 (46)

70 59 (1) 128

0 19 0 19

70 78 (1) 147

e Adjustments for capital purposes include the removal of depreciation and impairment costs, and the inclusion of capital

funded from current revenue.

related expenditure and income with the pension contributions.
e Other differences relate to the reversal of the value of entitlement to accrued leave.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

2.

EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS (continued)

2.2 Segmental Analysis of Income included in Expenditure and Funding Analysis

2019/20

Expenditure

Employee expenses
Other service expenses

Total Expenditure

Income
Government grants and other contribs.

Total Income

Net Cost of Services

2018/19

Expenditure

Employee expenses
Other service expenses

Total Expenditure

Income
Government grants and other contribs.

Total Income

Net Cost of Services

2.3 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

Core Projects Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
334 0 334
187 1,559 1,746
521 1,559 2,080
(4) (1,266) (1,270)
(4) (1,266) (1,270)
517 293 810
Core Projects Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
345 0 345
200 724 924
545 724 1,269
(1) (335) (336)
(1) (335) (336)
544 389 933

The Partnership's expenditure and income, as set out within the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement is analysed as follows:

Expenditure

Employee expenses

Other service expenses

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Interest payments

Total Expenditure

Income

Fees, charges and other service income
Interest and investment income

Income from constituent councils
Government grants and other contributions

Total Income

(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services
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31st March 31st March

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
365 403
1,649 875
141 119
75 73
2,230 1,470
(4) 0
(54) (55)
(190) (150)
(2,048)  (1,118)
(2,296)  (1,323)
(66) 147
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

3.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED

The Code requires the disclosure of information relating to the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a
new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. This applies to the adoption of the following new or amended
standards within the 2020/21 Code. For 2020/21 the following accounting policy changes that need to be reported relate
to:

e Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures,

¢ Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle and
¢ Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement.

The Code does not anticipate that the above amendments will have a material impact on the information
provided in the Partnership's Annual Accounts.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Partnership has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgements made in the Annual Accounts are:

e There is high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. The Partnership
has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the
Partnership might be impaired as a result of a need to reduce levels of service provision.

¢ Local Government Pension Scheme - Guaranteed minimum pension (GMP). The interim solution to avoid
inequalities between men and women's benefits following the introduction of the Single State Pension
in 2016 has resulted in a recalculation of pension liabilities relating to the estimated impact of GMP
indexation changes. The increased liability of £4,000 at 31 March 2019 has been reflected in the roll-
forward pension liability at 31st March 2020. The increased liability has been reflected as a past service
cost (refer to Note 24 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes). This is an estimate which will be revised at the
upcoming valuation.

¢ Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) - McCloud judgement. Legislation requires the LGPS to
undertake periodic valuations to monitor the cost of the LGPS to ensure it remains sustainable and
affordable. The cost management process has been paused following the Court of Appeal ruling that the
transitional arrangements in both the Judges' Pension Scheme (McCloud) and Firefighters' Pension
Scheme (Sargeant) were age discriminatory. These cases could have knock on implications for the LGPS
(potentially increasing the liabilities). The Partnership's actuary has included an estimate within the
pension liability as a past service cost (refer to Note 24 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes) which will be
subject to future revision as the outcome of the judgement becomes clearer. No further adjustment for
McCloud is included in the 2019/20 calculations. For those employers who already made an estimated
McCloud allowance in 2018/19, the actuary do not believe there is any significant new information
about the possible McCloud remedy to justify further changes to the figures (and further costs to
employers).
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

5.

ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

5.1

The Annual Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Partnership
about the future or events that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical
experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined
with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Partnership's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2020 for which there is a significant risk of
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are:

Pension Liabilities

Uncertainties

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating to
the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages,
mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged
to provide the Partnership with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.

Effect if Actual Result Differs from Assumptions

Formal actuarial valuations are carried out every three years, where each employer’s assets and liabilities are
calculated on a detailed basis, using individual member data, for cash contribution setting purposes. For 31
March 2020, it is difficult to comment on how a ‘typical’ LGPS employer’s balance sheet may compare to March
2019. For all LGPS Funds, investment returns have been significantly lower than expected (particularly in the last
2 months of the accounting period) which has served to worsen the balance sheet position. The effect of this will
have been at least partly offset by a higher net discount rate which serves to reduce the value placed on the
obligations (corporate bond yields are at a similar level to 2019 but inflation expectations are significantly lower).

Under accounting guidance, employers are expected to disclose the sensitivity of the valuation to key
assumptions.The following table shows the sensitivity of the results to the changes in the assumptions used to
measure the scheme liabilities. Approximate percentage changes and monetary values are shown:

Approximate % increase to Approximate monetary
Defined Benefit Obligation amount
% £000

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 12% 350
0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 3% 90
0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 9% 252

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Unaudited Annual Accounts were authorised for issue on 19th June 2020. Events taking place after this
date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this date
provide information about conditions existing at 31 March 2020, the figures in the financial statements
and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.
There were no events which took place after 31st March 2020 which would materially affect the 2019/20 Annual
Accounts. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, which began in March 2020, when Partnership employees
moved to remote working, was before the end of the reporting period. It is likely that the impact on the
Partnership's Annual Accounts for 2019/20 will be non-adjusting. The short, medium and long-term
consequences may give rise to changes in service provision which, if arising, will be considered and reported to
the Partnership during 2020/21. Further narrative to the pandemic and impact to the Partnership is referenced
within the Management Commentary.
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7. ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
recognised by the Partnership in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are
specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Partnership to meet future capital and revenue

expenditure.

Usable Reserves

2019/20

General Fund
Balance

Unusable Reserves

Capital
Adjustment
Account

Accumulated
Absence
Account

Pension
Reserve

Movement
in Unusable
Reserve

Adjustments primarily involving the
Capital Adjustment Account

Reversal of items debited or credited
to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (CIES)

Charges for depreciation and
impairment of non-current assets

Insertion of items not debited or credited
to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (CIES)

Contributions credited to the CIES that have
been applied to capital financing

Adjustments primarily involving the
Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement
benefits debited or credited to the CIES

Employer's pension contributions and
direct payments to pensioners payable
in the year

Adjustments primarily involving the
Accumulated Absence Account

Amount by which officer remuneration
charged to the CIES on an accruals
basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance
with statutory requirements

Total Adjustments

£'000

1

141

(98)

31

(81)

£'000

(141)

98

£'000

(4)

£'000

(131)

81

£'000

(141)

98

(131)

81

(4)

97

(43)

(4)

(50)

(97)
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

7.

ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

(continued)

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
recognised by the Partnership in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are
specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Partnership to meet future capital and revenue

expenditure.

2018/19

Usable Reserves

Unusable Reserves

General Fund
Balance

Capital
Adjustment
Account

Accumulated
Absence
Account

Pension
Reserve

Movement in
Unusable
Reserve

Adjustments primarily involving the
Capital Adjustment Account

Reversal of items debited or credited
to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (CIES)

Charges for depreciation and
impairment of non-current assets

Insertion of items not debited or credited
to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (CIES)

Contributions credited to the CIES that have
been applied to capital financing

Adjustments primarily involving the
Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement
benefits debited or credited to the CIES

Employer's pension contributions and
direct payments to pensioners payable
in the year

Adjustments primarily involving the
Accumulated Absence Account

Amount by which officer remuneration
charged to the CIES on an accruals
basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance
with statutory requirements

Total Adjustments

£'000

119

(49)

134

(56)

£'000

(119)

49

£'000

£'000

(134)

56

£'000

(119)

49

(134)

56

147

(70)

[y

(78)

(147)
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

8. TRANSFERS TO/FROM EARMARKED RESERVES
In accordance with the provisions of the Transport Scotland (2019) Act, the Partnership has agreed a Reserves
Policy. An earmarked balance of £150,000 has been established to meet slippage on project delivery from
2019/20 to 2020/21.
9. FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME
2019/20 2018/19
£'000 £'000
Interest income on plan assets (53) (54)
Interest Received (1) (1)
Pensions interest cost 75 73
21 18
10. TAXATION AND NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME
2019/20 2018/19
£'000 £'000
Government Grant (782) (782)
Constituent Council Requisitions (190) (150)
(972) (932)
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

111

Movements on balances:

Movements in 2019/20

Cost or Valuation

At 1st April 2019

Additions

Revaluation increases/(decreases)
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on
the Provision of Services

At 31st March 2020

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1st April 2019

Depreciation charge

Depreciation written out to the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services

At 31st March 2020

Net Book Value
At 31st March 2020
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Total

Vehicles Property
Plant and Assets Under Plant and
Equipment Construction Equipment
£'000 £'000 £'000
827 0 827

28 70 98

(64) 0 (64)

791 70 861

(475) 0 (475)
(128) 0 (128)

51 0 51

(552) 0 (552)

239 70 309
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
11.2 Movements on balances:
Comparative Movements in 2018/19 Total
Vehicles Property
Plant and Assets Under Plant and
Equipment Construction Equipment
Cost or Valuation £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1st April 2018 778 0 778
Additions 49 0 49
At 31st March 2019 827 0 827
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1st April 2018 (356) 0 (356)
Depreciation charge (119) 0 (119)
At 31st March 2019 (475) 0 (475)
Net Book Value
At 31st March 2019 352 0 352
11.3 Depreciation
The following useful lives have been used in the calculation of depreciation:
¢ Vehicles, plant and equipment: 4 - 5 years
The Partnership provides depreciation on its Property, Plant and Equipment from the month when it comes
into use.
11.4 Capital Commitments

The Partnership has no capital commitments for 2020/21.
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12,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

12.1 Financial Instruments - Classifications

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such as those relating to government grants, do not give rise
to financial instruments.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Partnership and can be represented
by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities
with another entity that is potentially unfavourable to the Partnership.

The Partnership’s financial liabilities held during the year comprised:
e Trade payables for goods and services received.

Financial Assets

A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Partnership that is represented by cash, equity
instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets or a right to exchange financial assets and
liabilities with another entity that is potentially favourable to the Partnership.

The Partnership’s financial assets held during the year comprised:

e Cashin hand,

e Cash and cash equivalents (Loans and receivables). The Partnership maintains its funds as part of the City of
Edinburgh Council’s group of bank accounts. Any cash balance is effectively lent to the Council, but is offset by
expenditure undertaken by the City of Edinburgh Council on behalf of the Partnership. Interest is given on month
end net indebtedness balances between the Council.

e Trade receivables for goods and services provided.

12.2 Financial Instruments - Balances

The financial liabilities disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the following categories

Current
31st March  31st March
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Trade creditors 565 557
The financial assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the following categories:
Current
31st March  31st March
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Loans and receivables 758 462
Trade debtors 9 156
767 618

Page 29

39



The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

12.3 Financial Instruments - Fair Values

The financial assets represented by loans and receivables are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Since all of
the Partnership's loans and receivables mature within the next 12 months, the carrying amount has been assumed to
approximate to fair value. The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

The fair values calculated are as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Financial Liabilities Amount Value Amount Value
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade creditors 565 565 557 557
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial Assets £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Loans and receivables 758 758 462 462
Trade debtors 9 9 156 158
767 767 618 620

12.4 Income, Expenses, Gains and Losses

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation to financial
instruments are made up as follows:

31st March 31st March

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Total expense and income in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services:
Interest Income 1 1

13. DEBTORS

31st March  31st March

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Debtors:
Central government bodies 504 27
Other local authorities 7 4
HM Customs and Excise - VAT 29 24
Other entities and individuals 233 459
773 514
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14. PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS

31st March 31st March
2020 2019
Cost or Valuation £'000 £'000
Opening Balance 0 0
Provision made during year 0 0
Unused amounts reversed during the year 0 0
Closing Balance 0 0
15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:
31st March 31st March
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Bank account 151 279
151 279
16. CREDITORS
31st March 31st March
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Central government bodies (25) 0
Other local authorities (89) (5)
Other entities and individuals (634) (543)
Employee costs (23) (61)
(771) (609)
17. USABLE RESERVES
31st March 31st March
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
17.1 Unallocated General Fund Reserve 13 0
17.2 Earmarked Balance - Project Budget slippage 150 0
163 0
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18. UNUSABLE RESERVES
31st March 31st March
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
18.1 Capital Adjustment Account 309 352
18.2 Pension Reserve (676) (867)
18.3 Accumulated Absence Account (10) (6)
(377) (521)
18.1 Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting
for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those
assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis).
The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Partnership as finance for the costs of acquisition,
construction and enhancement.
2019/20 2018/19
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1st April 352 422
Reversal of items related to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
e Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (141) (119)
e Charges for revaluation of non-current assets 0 0
Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in year 211 303
Capital financing applied in the year:
e Contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement that have been applied to capital financing 98 49
Balance at 31st March 309 352
18.2 Pension Reserve

The Pension Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Partnership accounts for post
employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment
returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be
financed as the Partnership makes employer's contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which
it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a shortfall in the benefits earned by
past and current employees and the resources the Partnership has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements
will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.
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18. UNUSABLE RESERVES (continued)

18.2 Pension Reserve (continued)

2018/19
£'000

(662)

(127)

(134)

56

2019/20
£'000

Balance at 1st April (867)
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability 241
Reversals of items relating to retirement benefits debited or (131)
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to 81
pensioners payable in the year.
Balance at 31st March (676)

(867)

18.3 Accumulated Absence Account

The Accumulated Absence Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the
General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, for
example, annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31st March. Statutory arrangements require
that the impact on the General Fund balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

2019/20 2018/19
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1st April (6) (7)
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of 6 7

the preceding year
Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (10) (6)
Balance at 31st March (10) (6)

19. MEMBERS EXPENSES

The Partnership paid the following amounts to members during the year:

2019/20 2018/19
£'000 £'000
Expenses 0 1
0 1
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20. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

The Partnership has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Annual Accounts, certification of
grant claims, statutory inspections and to non-audit services provided by the Partnership's external auditors:

2019/20 2018/19

Fees payable in respect of: £'000 £'000
¢ external audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for the year 11 10
11 10

21. GRANT INCOME

The Partnership credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement in 2019/20:
2019/20 2018/19

£'000 £'000
Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
Scottish Government - Revenue Grant (782) (782)
Constituent Council Requisitions (Note 22.3) (190) (150)
(972) (932)
Credited to Services
EU Grant - Social Car 0 (5)
EU Grant - Regio Mob (3) (24)
EU Grant - Sharenorth (12) (27)
EU Grant - RTPI 0
EU Grant - Surflogh (30) (29)
EU Grant - e-Bikes (24)
EU Grant - Bling (16) (2)
EU Grant - Primaas (12) 0
Contribution - Transport Scotland (46)
Contribution - City of Edinburgh Council (2) (2)
Contribution - East Lothian Council (2) (2)
Contribution - Fife Council (2) (2)
Contribution - Scottish Borders Council (8) (1)
Contribution - Scottish Enterprise (125) 0
Contribution - West Lothian Council 0
Contribution - HITRANS (4) (2)
Contribution - NESTRANS (3) (3)
Contribution - SUSTRANS (163) (110)
Contribution - SWESTRANS 0
Contribution - TACTRAN (3) (4)
Contribution - Transport Scotland (843) 0
Contribution - ZETRANS 0
(1,227) (283)
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22.

RELATED PARTIES

22.1

22.2

22.3

The Partnership is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the Partnership or to be controlled or influenced by the
Partnership. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Partnership
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to
limit another party's ability to bargain freely with the Partnership.

Scottish Government

The Partnership receives grant-in-aid revenue funding through the Scottish Government.
Grants received from the Scottish Government are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 21.

Members

Members of the Partnership have direct control over the Partnership's financial and operating policies.
The total of members' expenses paid by the Partnership in 2019-20 is shown in Note 19.

Other Parties

During the year, the Partnership entered into the following transactions with related parties:

2019/20
£'000

¢ Revenue Expenditure - Support Services
City of Edinburgh Council - Financial Services/ Clerking 44
Falkirk Council - HR Services 0
44

e Revenue Expenditure - Other

City of Edinburgh Council 1
East Lothian Council 108
Midlothian Council 18
Newcastle City Council 14
NHS Lothian 22
Scottish Government 21
184
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2018/19
£'000

42
2

44

o

13
46
17

77
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

22. RELATED PARTIES (continued)

22.3 Other Parties (continued)

2019/20 2018/19

£'000 £'000
e Revenue Income - Requisitions
Clackmannanshire Council (6) (5)
East Lothian Council (23) (10)
City of Edinburgh Council (61) (48)
Falkirk Council (19) (15)
Fife Council (44) (35)
Midlothian Council (11) (9)
Scottish Borders Council (14) (11)
West Lothian Council (22) (17)
(190) (150)
e Revenue Income - Interest on Revenue Balances
City of Edinburgh Council (1) (2)
(1) (1)
e Revenue Income - Other
Constituent Councils (40) (16)
City of Edinburgh Council (2) (2)
East Lothian Council (2) (2)
Fife Council (2) (2)
Scottish Borders Council (8) (1)
Scottish Enterprise (125) 0
Transport Scotland (843) (46)
(1,022) (69)
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22. RELATED PARTIES (continued)

22.3 Other Parties (continued)

The following represents amounts due to/(from) the Partnership at 31 March 2020, with its
related parties.

CREDITORS 2019/20 2018/19
£'000 £'000
e Creditors - Related Parties (Revenue Grants)
Clackmannanshire Council (80) 0
Edinburgh & Lothians Greenspace Trust (35) 0
NHS Lothian (58) (46)
Scottish Enterprise (25) (150)
West Lothian Council (8) 0
(206) (196)
e Creditors - Related Parties (Other)
City of Edinburgh Council (1) (5)
Falkirk Council 0 (2)
Constituent Councils 0 (32)
(1) (39)
e Creditors - Other Parties (564) (564)
Total Creditors (771) (799)
DEBTORS
e Debtors - Related Parties (Revenue Grants/ Other)
Network Rail 0 4
Scottish Borders Council 7 0
Scottish Enterprise 0 150
Stirling Council 0 4
Transport Scotland 504 26
511 184
e Debtors - Other Parties 262 330
Total Debtors 773 514
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23. LEASES
Operating Leases
From 8th February 2016 the Partnership took occupancy of Area 3D (Bridge) in Victoria Quay, Edinburgh
under the terms of a Memorandum of Terms of Occupation (MOTO) with the Scottish Government, which
forms part of the Civil Estates Occupancy Agreement (CEOA).
The Partnership signed a new MOTO and is permitted to occupy the space from 8th February 2019 to
7th February 2022 (the Prescribed Term) and so on until ended by either party giving notice under the
terms of the CEOA. Both parties will, upon provision of not less than 1 year’s prior written notice, have
the ability to break this agreement.
During 2019/20, the Partnership entered into a contract with Henry Howard Finance Group to lease eight Apple
iphones for staff use. The Partnership has the option to terminate the lease under no penalty if at least three
months written notice is given.
During 2019/20, the Partnership entered into a contract with Ricoh UK Ltd to lease an office printer. The
minimum term for this contract is 36 months before the Partnership has the option to terminate the lease
under no penalty.
The Partnership's expenditure on lease payments during 2019/20 was £18,000 (2018/19 £27,000)
The minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:
2019/20 2018/19
£'000 £'000
e Not later than 1 year 18 18
e QOver1year 1 0
19 18
The Partnership has no other material operational leases.
24. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES

24.1 Participation in Pension Schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its staff, the Partnership makes contributions
towards the cost of post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be

payable until the employees retire, the Partnership has a commitment to make the payments that
needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. As explained in
Accounting Policy 1.8, the Partnership is an admitted body to the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) which is administered by the Lothian Pension Fund.

The Partnership participates in:

¢ A funded defined benefit final salary scheme. This means that the Partnership and employees pay
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with
investment assets.

¢ An arrangement for the award of discretionary post retirement benefits upon early retirement - this
is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards
are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities, and
cash has to be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due.
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24,

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

24.2

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

The Partnership recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge
that is required to be made is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post employment/

retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The
following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Cost of services:

Service cost, comprising:

Current service costs
Past service costs

Financing and investment income:
Net interest expense

Total post employee benefit charged to the
surplus on the provision of services

Other post-employment benefits charges to the
Comprehensive Income / Expenditure Statement
Remeasurement of the net defined liability, comprising:

Return on plan assets, excluding the amount included
in the net interest expense above

Actuarial gains and (losses) arising on changes
in financial assumptions

Actuarial gains and (losses) arising on changes
in demographic assumptions

Other experience

Total post-emplovment benefits charged to the
Comprehensive Income / Expenditure Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement

Reversal of net charges made to the surplus on the
provision of services for post-employment benefits
in accordance with the Code.

Actual amount charged against the General Fund
Balance for pensions in the year:

Employer's contributions payable to the scheme
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2019/20 2019/20

£000 £000
109
0

109

22

131
146
(369)
0
(18)

241

(110)

50

81

81

2018/19
£000

85
30

(137)

264

2018/19
£000

115

19

134

127

261

78

56

56
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24. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

24.3 Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council's obligations in respect of its
defined benefit plan is as follows:

2019/20 2018/19
£'000 £'000
Fair value of employer assets 2,149 2,212
Present value of funded liabilities (2,825) (3,079)
Present value of unfunded liabilities 0 0
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (676) (867)
24.4 Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme Assets
2019/20 2018/19
£'000 £'000
Opening fair value of scheme assets 2,212 2,016
Interest income 53 54
Remeasurement gain / (loss):
Return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in the net (146) 137
interest expense
Contributions from employer 81 56
Contributions from employees into the scheme 18 17
Benefits paid (69) (68)
Unfunded benefits paid 0 0
Closing fair value of scheme assets 2,149 2,212
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities
2019/20 2018/19
£'000 £'000
Present value of funded liabilities (3,079) (2,678)
Present value of unfunded liabilities 0 0
Opening balance at 1st April (3,079) (2,678)
Current service cost (109) (85)
Interest cost (75) (73)
Contributions from employees into the scheme (18) (17)
Remeasurement gain / (loss):
Change in demographic assumptions 0 0
Change in financial assumptions 369 (264)
Other experience 18 0
Past service cost 0 (30)
Benefits paid 69 68
Unfunded benefits paid 0 0
Closing balance at 31st March (2,825) (3,079)
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24,

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

24.5

Fair Value of Employer Assets

The following asset values are at bid value as required under 1AS19.

Equity Securities:
Consumer *
Manufacturing *
Energy and Utilities *
Financial Institutions *
Health and Care *
Information technology *
Other *

Sub-total Equity Securities

Debt Securities:

Corporate Bonds (investment grade) *

Corporate Bonds (investment grade)
UK Government *

Sub-total Debt Securities

Private Equity:
All

Sub-total Private Equity

Real Estate:
UK Property *
UK Property
Overseas Property

Sub-total Real Estate

Investment Funds and Unit Trusts:
Equities *
Bonds *
Bonds
Infrastructure

Sub-total Investment Funds and Unit Trusts

Derivatives:
Foreign Exchange *

Sub-total Derivatives

Cash and Cash Equivalents
All *

Sub-total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Fair Value of Employer Assets

2019/20
£'000 %
205 10
310 14
137 6
140 7
149 7
93 4
157 7
1,191
36 2
79 4
132 6
247
19
19 1
25 1
116 5
2 0
143
26 1
9 0
0 0
302 14
337
4 0
4
208 10
208
2,149

Scheme assets marked with an asterisk (*) have quoted prices in active markets.
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2018/19
£'000

235
272
167
186
120

72
216

1,268

225

225

30
30

150

150

22

56
275

353

186

186

2,212

%

11
12

(o]
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24,

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

24.6

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Hymans Robertson, the independent actuaries to Lothian Pension Fund, have advised that the financial
assumptions used to calculate the components of the pension expense for the year ended 31 March 2020 were

those from the beginning of the year (i.e. 31 March 2019) and have not been changed during the year.

The principal assumptions used by the actuary in the calculations are:

Investment returns
e Total returns for the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

2019/20

Mortality assumptions - longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

* Males 21.7 years

e Females 24.3 years
Mortality assumptions - longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

e Males 24.7 years

e Females 27.5 years
Pension increase rate 1.9%
Salary increase rate (see below) 3.5%
Discount rate 2.3%

(4.2%)
2018/19

21.7 years
24.3 years

24.7 years
27.5 years

2.5%
4.2%
2.4%

Estimation of defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out above. In order

to quantify the impact of a change in the financial assumptions used, the Actuary has calculated and
compared the value of the scheme liabilites as at 31 March 2020 on varying bases. The approach taken

by the Actuary is consistent with that adopted to derive the IAS19 figures.

The principal demographic assumption is the longevity assumption (i.e. member life expectancy). For sensitivity
purposes, the Fund's Actuary has estimated that a one year increase in life expectancy would approximately
increase the Employer’s Defined Benefit Obligation by around 3-5%. In practice the actual cost of a one year
increase in life expectancy will depend on the structure of the revised assumption (i.e. if improvements to

survival rates predominantly apply at younger or older ages).
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24. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES (continued)
24.7  Analysis of projected amount to be charged to profit or loss for the period to 31 March 2021
Assets Obligations Net (liability) / asset
£000 £000 £000 % of pay

Projected current service cost 0 (87) (87) (42.7%)
Past service cost including curtailments 0 0 0 0.0%
Effect of settlements 0 0 0 0.0%
Total Service Cost 0 (87) (87) (42.7%)
Interest income on plan assets 50 0 50 22.2%
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 0 (65) (65) (31.0%)
Total Net Interest Cost 50 (65) (15) (8.8%)
Total included in Profit or Loss 50 (152) (102) (51.5%)
The Partnership's estimated contribution to Lothian Pension Fund for 2020/21 is £60,000.

25. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Partnership's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

® Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Partnership;

U Liquidity risk - the possibility that the Partnership might not have funds available to meet its commitments to
make payments;

. Re-financing risk - the possibility that the Partnership might be requiring to renew a financial
instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms;

[ Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Partnership as a result of changes in such
measures as interest rate movements;

[ Price risk - the possibility that fluctuations in equity prices has a significant impact on the value of
financial instruments held by the Partnership;

[ Foreign exchange risk - the possibility that fluctuations in exchange rates could result in loss to the

Partnership.

Treasury Management is carried out on the Partnership's behalf by the City of Edinburgh Council. The Council's
overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and implementing
restrictions to minimise these risks. The Council complies with the CIPFA Prudential Code and has adopted

the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the
Partnership’s customers.

The Partnership's surplus funds not immediately required to meet expenditure commitments are held with the
City of Edinburgh Council, and the Partnership receives interest on revenue balances on these monies. As the
Partnership's surplus funds are held with the City of Edinburgh Council, the counterparty default exposure is
effectively nil.

All Partnership invoices become due for payment on issue, and all trade debtors are overdue less than a month.
Collateral - During the reporting period the Partnership held no collateral as security.
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The South East of Scotland Transport Partnership (SESTRAN)

25. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Partnership is required by statute to provide a balanced budget, which ensures sufficient monies are
raised to cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance
to meet its commitments under financial instruments. The arrangement with the City of Edinburgh Council
ensures sufficient liquidity is available for the Partnership's day to day cash flow needs.

The Council manages the Partnership's liquidity position through the risk management procedures above

as well as through cash flow management procedures required by the Code of Practice.

Refinancing risk

The Partnership has only a small level of surplus funds and no long term debt. The refinancing risk to the
Partnership relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature.

As such, the Partnership has no refinancing risk on its liabilities.

The Partnership has no investments with a maturity greater than one year.

Market risk
Interest rate risk
The Partnership is exposed to interest rate movements on its investments. Movements in interest rates
have a complex impact on an organisation, depending on how variable and fixed interest rates move
across differing financial instrument periods.
For instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates would have the following effects:
® borrowings at variable rates - the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services will rise;
® borrowings at fixed rates - the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall;
® investments at variable rates - the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services will rise; and
® investments at fixed rates - the fair value of the assets will fall.
The Partnership currently has no borrowings. Changes in interest receivable on variable rate investments will
be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance.
However, all investments currently have a maturity of less than one year and the fair value has therefore
been approximated by the outstanding principal.
The Partnership's surplus funds are held with the City of Edinburgh Council.
The Council's Treasury Management Team continue to monitor market and forecast interest rates during the
year and adjust investment policies accordingly.

Price risk
The Partnership does not invest in equity shares.

Foreign Exchange risk

As at 31 March 2020, the Partnership had financial assets of £102,000 subject to foreign exchange risk.
The foreign exchange loss or gain on these financial assets cannot be determined until 2020/21, when
the Partnership is in receipt of the related grant income from the European Regional Development Fund.
The Partnership has no financial liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.
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SEStran Performance and Audit Committee Meeting
Friday 5" June 2020

South East of Scotland Item 5 (b) Annual Treasury Report 2019/20
Transport Partnership

ANNUAL TREASURY REPORT 2019/20
1. Purpose of report

The purpose of this report is to provide an Annual Treasury Report for the
financial year 2019/20.

2. Summary

The Partnership has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury
Management in the Public Sector, and under the code, an Annual Report on
Treasury Management must be submitted to the Partnership after the end of
each financial year.

3. Investment Out-turn 2019/20

3.1 The Partnership’s Investment Strategy has been to maintain its bank account
as part of the City of Edinburgh Council’s group of bank accounts. Any cash
balance is effectively lent to the Council, but is offset by expenditure
undertaken by the City of Edinburgh Council on behalf of the Partnership.
Interest is given on month end net indebtedness balances between the
Council and the Partnership and for financial year 2019/20 is calculated in
accordance with the withdrawn Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory
Committee’s (LASAAC) Guidance Note 2 on Interest on Revenue Balances
(IoRB). In line with recent short term interest rates, the investment return
continues to be small, but the Partnership gains security from its
counterparty exposure being to the City of Edinburgh Council. Net end of
month balances for the financial year were:

Balance due to
SEStran(+ve)
/due by
SEStran (-ve)

£
Opening Balance -76,919.16
30 April 2019 89,594.07
31 May 2019 147,662.65
30 June 2019  -417,601.48
31 July 2019 91,663.71
31 August 2019 101,800.78
30 September 2019 190,772.30
31 October 2019 45,162.34
30 November 2019 102,436.65
31 December 2019 194,183.04
31 January 2020 72,646.05
29 February 2020 61,629.17
31 March 2020 -11,926.69
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3.2 Interest is calculated on the average monthly balance. The interest rate
applied was 0.532%, giving an interest amount of £890.80 payable to the
Partnership.

4. Recommendations

4.1 It is recommended that the Performance and Audit Committee reviews the
Annual Report for 2019/20 and refers it to the Partnership Board for noting.

HUGH DUNN
Treasurer

Appendix None

Contact/tel lain Shaw, Tel: 0131 469 3117
(iain.shaw@edinburgh.gov.uk)
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GO
SEStran Performance and Audit Committee Meeting

- Friday 5" June 2020
.?.OUth East o Scotland Item 6. Risk Management Report
ransport Partnership

Risk Framework

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with its six-monthly
update on the risk register, which is an integral part of SEStran's Risk
Management Framework.

2. BACKGROUND

21 SEStran has been using a Risk Register to record, report and evaluate
risks within the organisation since May 2008. All risks are reviewed
regularly by the relevant staff and Appendix 1 to this report is the latest
version SEStran Risk Register, highlighting the key risks.

2.2 The Committee should note that all changes made to the register are
highlighted in red. Committee will note in particular that a specific risk has
been added in the light of the current pandemic.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 The Committee are asked to comment on the contents of the report; and

3.2 Note that a final version of the Risk Register will be presented to
Partnership Board for noting.

Angela Chambers
Business Manager
June 2020

Appendix 1: SEStran Risk Register

Policy Implications None
Financial Implications As highlighted in the register.
Equalities Implications None

Climate Change Implications None
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Appendix 1

g z
2 (=]
5 g Gross Risk A t Net Risk A t Risk After
ross Risk Assessmen et Risk Assessmen

E Risk Detail 5 Planned Response/Mitigation Mitigation/Appetite for |Date and Owner
EE f Risk

=

Probability| Impact |Risk Score Probability| Impact |Risk Score

R0O01 |Policy Appraisal: Advised by Government of relevant Low. Partnership staff also |New2619-June
Poor Quality policy changes and Partnership continue to monitor their (2020
Lack of consultation Director and Officers regularly networks for relevant policy |Partnership

o ° ) looking out for further policies and ° discussions. Director
o ° o 3 |responding accordingly. ° ] 3 |RTS re-write process
H 1 £ 3 3 3 ° . 1 £ 2 £ 2 o
Z g o = |Consultative forums also enable g s = |underway.
» = greater visibility and integration of Tolerate
local policies into regional strategy.

R002 |Project Appraisal and Monthly monitoring and Low. Regular monitoring New-2019 June
Delivery: management intervention by the and management/project (2020
Incomplete or of poor project officer and oversight by the team meetings provides all |Programmes
quality Programmes Manager. across the organisation with [Manager
Late Delivery a clear view of progress and

] ® expenditure against budget.
S > - £ = % | d
) 2 5 5 ] © z Regular reports presente
g2z |4 g 8| % 2= |3 § 6 | 3 |toP&A Committee and
e = s = s Partnership Board, which
o .
have been revivsed to
provide focused monitoring
template.
Tolerate

R0O03 |Digital/IT: SEStran has an up-to-date Low. Contracted IT e
Server failure Management Plan for Business consultants deliver IT September 2020
Commis failure: phones § Continuity. Wesbite maintained services. Website contract [Business
Website TE under contract. Both proactively includes security updates. |Manager

S o N £ managed by third parties. ) N Robust Information Security
s S lal| 2|12 2 2 2 % |Policy in place with regular
-] ] w = = . .
5 4 = s g = monitoring reports. GDPR
£ compliant and Cyber
% Essentials Accreditation
> .
© achieved.

Tolerate

R0O04 |Reputation: Good relationships with media. Low. Partnership staff Nev-20819 June
Regard by the public and Quick response to negative or continue to promote and 2020
stakeholders. = inaccurate coverage. advocate activities via Partnership
Negative or inaccurate § % % g Proactive placement of copy. % 5 speaking, writing or wider |Director
media coverage leading to E @ 3 g 9 E Agreed broad media positions. @ £ % networking

-
misrepresentation of SEStran §. & § S |Availability of Spokesperson - 8 2 Continue to work closely
position e« Senior staff only. with regional partners
No unauthorised media Tolerate
statements.




Appendix 1

equates to an increase in
cost of approximately
£4,911.

ROO5 |Statutory Duties: Audit approved systems of Low. Regular monitoring June- November
Failure to adhere to duties governance in place. External and and programming of 2020
described in legislation and g internal audits carried out. statutory duties is Partnership
related documentation = undertaken by the Director

3 @ o ] = Partnership Direct

8 £ 5 = 2 5 = artnership Director,

_”é E g El g § S |Senior Partnership Manager
H < e and Business Manager.

Eb Audited by third parties.

L

- Tolerate

R0O06 |Financial: The Partnership's Financial Rules do Low. ir-October 2017, the- |March-

6.0 Significant deviation from not permit the Partnership’s e November 2020
budgeted spend spending (whether revenue or mmenced-consultationte-|Partnership

capital) to exceed its available e deration-te-RTPs- |Director
budget. Budget and spend is being given powerstoof
monitored on a monthly basis by carry-forward-of
SEStran officers, using financial penditure acrossfinancial
information provided by City of years: Transport (Scotland)
Edinburgh Council (CEC) through Act 2019 Bileurrently-gotng]
the Partnership's Financial Services bt
= - ) Service Level Agreement with CEC ° includesd section on RTPs
S E] g 3 |and supported by qualified ° ‘g‘ 3 |carrying reserves.
pd = 3 S accounting staff of CEC. Action is 5 s S |Tolerate
W > 2 taken by Partnership officers to «
develop alternative savings
measures, including options for
development of contingency
arrangements, if required and
subject to approval by the
Partnership. The Partnership's
Financial Rules require reporting of
financial performances to the
Partnership Board on a quarterly
basis.

6.1 The approved budget for Alignment with Scottish Local Low P
2019/20 assumes provision Government pay policy Tolerate November 2020
for a pay award of 3%, based Partnership
on alignment with the - - Director

) , = v s ) &
Scottish Government’s 8 = S = S

; 9 2 © & H © = H
public sector pay offer. A 1% H o c ) E-1 c ]
. . . c o o - o [y =
increase in pay award uplift T & 2 & 2
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6.2 Staff recharges - EU projects: Any shortfall in employee recharges Medium: Other funding March-

The proposed budget will be managed through sources will continue to be |November 2020
assumes that £119,000 of o corresponding reductions in pursued. Partnership
staff time can be recharged = E ) Projects Budget expenditure. In @ . € Tolerate Director

to five EUProjects - Share- g o g 0 5 2020/21, EU projects represent 2 e 5 3

north, Surflogh, Bling, £ ; 3 T |14% of the proposed budget. § s 3

Primaas and Connect. There v fn 2 e =

is a risk this may not be T

achievable

6.3 Inflation: There is a risk that When setting the revenue budget, Medium P
the approved budget does = o . € allowance made for specific price © . € Tolerate November 2020
not adequately cover price ] g S, o 3 |inflation and budgets adjusted in g S, o 3 Partnership
inflation and increasing e 8 g 8 |line with current cost forecasts. 8 g 3 Director
demand for services. &= & 2 & 2

6.4 Delays in payment of SEStran grant claims for projects Low: Grant submission P
external grants results in are submitted in compliance with procedures in place, along |November 2020
additional short-term _ grant funding requirements to € with financial planning. Partnership
borrowing costs. -g 5 5 = ensure minimal delay in payment. g ::_'_3 = Tolerate Director

s § § 6 | 3 [Ongoing monitoring of cash flow is g S 3| 3
i a undertaken to manage exposure to a g

additional short-term borrowing -

costs.

6.5 Sources of additional income Active Travel funding a high priority Medium Flereh-
to the Partnership may for Government with funds Tolerate: Adapt November 2020
become constrained in the = o ] £ consistently available to bid for. o ] £ expenditure accordingly Partnership
current economic climate E 3 g 12 | 2 [Revenue budget for 2020/21 k] g 12| 2 Director
and/or due to changes in E ﬁ 3 E developed to take account of most § 3 E
operating arrangements. = & 2 likely level of external income in & =

2020/21.

6.6 Funding reductions: Future The Partnership will continue to Medium March-
reductions in core funding source and develop external Tolerate: Manage November-2020
from Scottish Government funding. Working with the Scottish organisation in accordance |[Partnership
and/or council requisitions. Government on a regional response with available funding but  |Director
This could result in difficulty to the pandemic should increase ability of organisation to
in delivering statutory ] o = £ likelihood of funding remaining o = £ deliver RTS objectives will
obligations/duties. § g .% 12 _g constant if not increasing. g .% 12 _g inevitably be dictated by

£ S 2 § o 2 § available funding.
Scottish Government now
promoting 3 year budget
process, providing more
certaintity for future
planning.

6.7 The deficit on the staff Following the Lothian Pension Fund Medium P
pension fund could lead to - ° o Triennial Acturial Review of 2017, ° o Tolerate November 2020
increases in the employers § s s S Partnership contribution rates have s s S Partnership
pension contribution 3 S § 22 ® |been advised until 2020/21. The 2 § 22 ? Director

i a = 2 risk is therefore for future years. & s =

60



Appendix 1

considered by Transport Scotland.
Discussions ongoing with Transport
Scotland who have indicated they
are receptive to enhanced role for
RTPs during current phase of
lockdown release. Joint RTPs paper

submitted to Transport Scotland

6.8 Current staffing levels The Partnership continues to seek Medium: Other funding March-
cannot be maintained due to additional sources of funding for sources will continue to be |November 2020
funding constraints and the activities aligned to the pursued. Partnership
Partnership incurs staff = ° € Partnership's objectives to @ € Tolerate Director

K 2 = 2 .
| t S 2 =] 3 | t 2 k) 3
release costs 2 2 S| qa| 2 [suee tf_men resources - 2 S || 2
c ) s 2 [Recruitment control measures in 3 s o
i a = " a =
place. Additional resources can be
managed through consultancy as
required.

6.9 Following the outcome of The Partnership continues to seek Medium P
the EU Referendum, the alternative funding sources to Tolerate: Adapt November 2020
Partnership is unable to o progress knowledge expenditure accordingly Partnership
access EU funding. = E K] exchange/transfer and-te-seek-te- M K] € Currently involved in 6 EU  [Director

'g &.c" g 5| B | fully-bid-for EU-project E g o _g projects, the completion of
2 > 38 T |[foHowingthe UnitedKingdom- o 38 g which are underwritten by
[ '§: = servicing-notice underArticle 50, a >3 the UK Treasury.

I

R0O07 |HR: SLA in place with Falkirk Council to Low June-New-2019-
Pension Liabilities provide specialist HR advice as Tolerate 20
Redundancy Contingency ° required and is under regular Partnership
Inappropiate Behaviour % % ‘5 g review. Legal advice is provided, % 5 3 Director
Staffing/Incapacity S @ 8 | 9| g [whenrequired, through a £ 12| 3

a o o L Q =
a s 2 |framework contract, which is in &
place until June 2020. [renewal]?

RO08 |Corporate: RTPsjointly-lobbying Transport High: Nov-2020
P e e e Seek to resolve Partnership
the review of the National e Director
Fransport-Strategy—Regional an-the 2 Rosiove o ardoi e
governance review. soughtand received assurances

around tanti £ f1 i, and

undertakinest from-Scottish

undertakings transfer from }
o ° Ministers: NTS2 Roles and °
‘a0 o 5 = |Responsibilities Working Group = ° <
] 8 T |16 @ . F T |16 =
© 2 s T [have made recommendations ) s T

2 <

& o which are currently being a
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June 2020 Partnership Director

RO09 |EU-Exit-Other Funding The Partnership has sought to Medium: The risk remains |Nov 2020
Sources: engage in as many relevant EU as there is significant Partnership
Impact on learning and projects and funds as it can whilst uncertainty around the Director
funding UK authorities are allowed to medium (3-5year) horizon

access these funds. This should for access to funds.
o mitigate the short-term impact of ° Opportunity for renewed
_ % ° any EU Exit negotiated and % collaborative working with
2 2 E = |implemented. Timescales for 2 5 g EU following Brexit to be
E E § 15 ;-:" effective exit remain unclear E § 10| 5 [explored.
i E s The Partnership has a proven track %o 2 [SEStran continuing to be
T record in securing funding for T accepted as partners in EU
relevant projects from the UK and funded projects.
other partners. It is anticipated EU projects secured for
that this will continue. further 3 years. Other
funding applications will be
made when available.
Tolerate

R010 |Governance: Governance Scheme contains Low Nov 2020
Succession Planning adequate provision to deal with Tolerate Partnership
Business Continuity A % % £ senior officer absence. Staff %. N Director

§ 2 é 9 § struc'ture and Business Continuity = _g 4 §
s o § s Plar? in place. - 5 s

Senior Partnership Manager

appointed.

RO11 |Third party Service Level Service Level Agreements in place Low Nov 2020
Agreements: for Financial Services, HR, Legal and Tolerate Partnership
Failure or inadequacy of Insurance services. Reviewed Director
service o > o annually by senior officers. Subject = =

Tg % ,§ 4 % to independent audit scrutiny. % ,§ 4 %
& 5 = = £ s 3

RO12 Pandemic / Epidemic: Regular contact with officials of Low An ongoing risk (realised
Interruption of normal both Transport Scotland and in March 2020) remains for
service/inability to deliver 2 > -é ¢ consituent councils to map a way N 2 future spikes of Covid-19 or
functions. Financial impact % % g 10 ?3; forward. Current functions can be %’ g 6 § other outbreaks
of crisis on sources of & =) § S delivered by working from home. =1 2 Tolerate

funding.
New functions can't be met

New functions can be met through
consultancy support.
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g >
E 5 Risk After
> 1] Gross Risk Assessment Net Risk Assessment
i Risk Detail 5 Planned Response/Mitigation Mitigation/Appetite for |Date and Owner
i i Risk
®  |Probability| Impact [Risk Score Probability| Impact |Risk Score
RO05 [Restricted ability to Resolve absence as soon as Partnership Director June 2019
5.1 undertake RTS re-write: o o o £ possible and appoint external - appointed May 2019. CLOSED
i 2 e g 5 | 3 5 identifi i
Inadequate ser.1|or staff % 4 ® 3 ko 12| 2 resources as required. 2 = 2 2 a g Fur.1ds identified for RTS re
resourcing available due to 4 o ° c S = |write
. & a S = >
continued absence of
Partnership Director
6.9 Accommodation: Occupancy A notice period of 12 months must June 2019
Agreeement with SG due for o be served by each party under the o CLOSED
renewal February 2019. SG .Tg % ‘é g current occupancy agreement. % ‘é’ g
may not renew and § 3 '% 3 g 9 § Occupancy Agreement renewed 3 '% 3 | B9 §
alternative premises iT [ § 2 |until February 2022. [ § =
required at market rates.
6.10 |[ECOMM: Agreement to SEStran withdrew offer to host June 2019
commit to ECOMM on the = o o £ ECOMM due to uncertaintity over o CLOSED
i i 'S ) e E i i 8 S
basis of being cost neutral. g 3 i 3 ko 9 2 Brexit and subsequent impact on 3 i 2 2 6 g
Income depends on number £ S ° § attendance at the conference. S S -
of delegates attending - 2
conference.
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Likelihood Severity Risk Score At Risk Impact Impact
1 Remote 1 Insignificant 1 System and Technology Descriptor | Score |  Health and Safety Impact Impact on Service and Reputation | Financial Impact Catastrophic 5 10 15 20 25
No impact on service or reputation.
§ - R . . . N Loss/costs up to
2 Unlikely 2 Minor 2 Reputational Insignificant[ 1 | No injury or no apparent injury.|Complaint unlikely, litigation risk remote £5000 Major 4 8 12 16 20
Slight impact on service and/or Loss/costs
3 Possible 3 3 Strategic Minor 2 Minor injury (First Aid on Site) |reputation. Complaint possible. Litigation | between £5000 Moderate 3 6 9 12 15
Moderate possible and £50,000.
Some service distruption. Potential for
Low Risk ) . adverse publicity, avoidable with careful Less/tgesis .
4 Probable 4 4 Financial Moderate 3 Reportable injury iemellig, Gl @amgis] igE e between £50,000 Minor 2 4 6 8 10
Major probable. and £500,000
Maior ini b Service disrupted. Adverse publicity not Loss/costs
) t )
Highly Probable Catastrophic | 5 Governance Major 4 ajor injry ({EPW 5 f) " |avoidable (local media). Complaint between Insignificant 1 2 3 4 5
permanent incapacity expected. Litigation expected. £500,000 and
Service interrupted for significant time.
Adverse publicity not avoidable (national Thef Highl
) . eft/loss over i
6 Specific Operational Catastrophic| 5 Death media interest.) Major litigation expected. v Likelihood | Remote | Unlikely [ Possible [ Probable any
: ) £5,000,000 Probable
Resignation of senior
management/directors.
8 External
9 Legal and Regulatory Likelihood
10 | Medium Risk People Descriptor | Score Example
. May only occur in exeptional
12 Physical Remote 1 .
circumstances.
Expected to occur in a few
15 Unlikely 2 )
circumstances.
. Expected to occur in some
16 Possible 3 )
circumstances.
Expected to occur in many
20 Probable 4 )
circumstances.
25 Higity 5  |Expected to occur frequently
) ; Probable ’ .
High Risk and in most circumstances.

Maintain existing measures in place.

Review control measures. Even if the risk is low, there may be things that can be
done to bring the risk rating down to minimal.

Improve control measures. If the Rating Action Band is greater than 3 or 4 then a
review of the exisiting safety/control measures needs to be done, where additional

Improve control measures immediately and consider stopping work activity until
risk is reduced.
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Go Performance and Audit Committee

Friday 5th June 2020

SEStran Item 7. Projects Performance

South East of Scotland
Transport Partnership

Projects Performance Report

1.

1.1

21

2.2

2.3

31

4.1

INTRODUCTION

The report provides the Committee with an update on the progress of the various
projects SEStran delivers. The report covers the position on Covid-19 in relation to
project delivery and consultancy services required this financial year.

Projects performance

A high level ‘RAG status’ (Red-Amber-Green) is used throughout the projects update
to highlight the current state of progress for each active project.

The table below explains the meaning of the different colours used throughout the
report to highlight how a project is progressing:

Status | Meaning:
Complete
Progressing according to plan
Some issues encountered
Severe issues or delayed

The strategic objectives as set out in the SEStran Regional Transport Strategy are
used throughout the projects update to highlight how the projects link back to the

RTS:
9 Economy

@ Accessibility

9 Environment

@ Safety & health

@ Corporate

Consultancy support services

In response to Covid-19, additional resource is required to progress some emergent
areas of work, and this will be the subject of a report to the Board.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Committee notes the content of this report and progress
on current projects.
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Anna Herriman
Senior Partnership Manager
28 May 2020

Appendix 1: Projects update

Policy Implications

Outlined project work contributes to the objectives
identified within SEStran Regional Transport Strategy

Financial Implications

All project work is delivered from within confirmed budgets.

Equalities Implications

There are no adverse equalities implications arising from
SEStran projects. A number of projects actively work to
reduce inequalities.

Climate Change Implications

There are no negative climate change implications arising
from SEStran projects. A number of projects actively work
to tackle climate change through creation of more
sustainable transport options.
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1. Strategy

1.1 Regional Transport Strategy 9@ @ @ @

SEStran’s original Regional Transport Strategy (RTS) was approved in March 2007 and covered the period
from 2008 until 2015. The strategy was subject to a refresh in August 2015 and covers the period until 2025.

Latest developments:

e  Main Issues Report
The final draft of the main issues report was circulated to board members and local authority partners
for comments and the final version of the main issues report is now complete. This identifies a total of
35 issues across the SEStran area and focused on 10 key issues which were considered to be the key
focus for the rewrite of the Regional Transport Strategy.

e  RTS Development In progress
The next stage of the RTS is the development of the strategy and policies. This will require consultation
with key stakeholders and the preparation of the statutory assessments to support the RTS including
the Strategic Environmental Assessment and the Equalities Impact Assessment. A brief to procure
consultancy support for this stage of the work is under development.

2. Active Travel Projects

2.1 GO e-Bike 00005

In April 2018, SEStran successfully launched GO e-Bike, a regional bike-sharing scheme funded by SEStran,
with a contribution from the SHARE-North project. The first four GO e-Bike hubs were launched in St
Andrews, Buckhaven, West Lothian and Falkirk. In August 2018 SEStran secured funding from the Low
Carbon Travel and Transport (LCTT) Fund and Transport Scotland (TS) to expand the GO e-Bike scheme
through 6 further hubs.

Latest developments:

® GO e-Bike expansion with LCTT & TS funding

e Activities at the Tweeddale Hub were analysed to make a possible response to COVID-19 locally
but a decision was taken that the feasibility of keeping the hub open and protecting staff could not

be met.

e Residents at Socialbite Village continue to make use of the e-bikes on site for exercise during
lockdown, though there has been challenges in maintaining the bikes in this period.

e Sitesin Midlothian have now been serviced by SPEN and plans are being progressed for installation
once restrictions on the construction sector are lifted.

e Sites in East Lothian are awaiting finalised dates from SPEN as their works have now been
derestricted.

e Once dates have been confirmed for installation, the project timeline will be mapped out with
stakeholders to prepare for launching the system.
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2.2 Regional Cycle Network Grant Scheme @ @

The Regional Cycle Network Grant Scheme continues the partnership between Sustrans Scotland and
SEStran’s commitment to delivering improvements to the cross-boundary utility routes.

Latest developments:

®  Edinburgh BioQuarter In progress
e Work has been progressing along with City of Edinburgh to assess signalling on the route and
particularly at Cameron Toll and Craigmillar Park Road.
e Dueto COVID-19 the project has a new timeline for completing this design phase at the end of June
2020.
®  SEStran Strategic Cycle Network Review Complete
e The final report for the Strategic Network has been published on the SEStran website and shared
with all partners.
e  Officers are now working along with partners to take the proposals forward.

2.3 Regional Active Travel Development Fund — Transport Scotland @ @

The Regional Active Travel Development Fund was established between Transport Scotland and the
Regional Transport Partnerships in 2019. SEStran made a proposal for projects in 2020/21 to Transport
Scotland in March 2020 and has received £314,000 for this third year of funding.

Latest developments:

®  Project 1: Attitudinal Survey & Data Collection In progress
e This project will combine both quantitative and qualitative data to support planning for active travel

interventions to support and inform demand, and also capture the drivers of behaviour change
over a period of time.

e Officers are preparing briefs and surveys to establish a baseline for the project start

e Total award £100,000

®  Project 2: Do The Ride Thing Awareness Campaign In progress
e SEStran have created an awareness campaign for the use of e-bikes across the region to

complement the launch of a number of e-bike hubs.

e Do The Ride Thing seeks to create an environment where individuals look out for others and
create good habits while riding a bike.

e This project would increase awareness of the benefits and options that an e-bike can bring for
active travel and physical activity, through media campaigns and shareable artwork that would
be used by different organisations operating e-bikes and rental schemes.

e Total award £100,000

®  Project 3: West Lothian Active Travel Projects In progress

e Completion of projects from 2019/20 FY.

o To provide active travel provision between Ecclesmachan and Threemiletown,

providing a safe link to local bus services.
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o To provide a link from Bathgate Hills quiet roads through Bangour and connect to the
Livingston green network.
e Investigate a number of potential active travel links:
o A89 Parallel Route — Easton Road Bathgate to Armadale
o A904 Newton — South Queensferry
o Linlithgow — Bo’ness (Links to Blackness & Falkirk)
o West Calder —Harburn
o Bathgate Hills Quiet Roads Initiative
e TJotal award £64,000
e SEStran successfully bid for resource funding to support the breadth of active travel projects
that happen across the partnership.
o TJotal Award £50,000

2.4 Cycle Training & Development — Cycling Scotland @ @ @

Support and develop the delivery of Bikeability Scotland National Standard cycle training by local authority
Bikeability coordinators. Promote, encourage and develop cycle training opportunities across SEStran
projects.

Latest developments:
*  Bikeability Scotland In progress
e Scheduled training has been postponed across all Local Authorities. Work is ongoing to support
education hubs to provide cycling activities, with East Lothian, Edinburgh, and Scottish Borders
already doing so. Any unspent Support Plus Funding can be redirected to support these activities.
A document was circulated to all Local Authority Bikeability Coordinators with information on

cycling activities taking place as of mid-May.

® GO e-Bike cycle training
e Training is being offered to all hubs as they are completed and as part of ongoing development
plans.

e Tweeddale Youth Action Bike Punks project completed a four-day Cycle Trainer course to enable
them to support the delivery of Bikeability Scotland cycle training in schools. This course also
provides them the opportunity to go on to offer adult cycle training with a short supplementary
training course.

e ACycle Trainer Assistant course was set-up for West Lothian Bike Library to enable them to support
the delivery of Bikeability Scotland in West Lothian and surrounding LAs. They were supported to
become an approved supplier on the Bikeability Scotland Training Provider DPS. They have since
been appointed to provide training support to schools in Midlothian. They are now being offered
places on a Cycle Trainer course.

®  Adult Cycle Training In progress
e Currently considering options for how to develop a workable model for adult cycle training.

e Pilot delivery of family cycle training is being explored.
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3. Public Transport Projects

3.1 Real Time Passenger Information (RTPI) e@ @ @

SEStran’s RTPI system began in 2010 with the aim to tackle a declining bus patronage and make bus travel
more predictable and reliable. SEStran is working with the City of Edinburgh Council to move towards a new
Content Management System that will improve the public facing regional screen network.

Latest developments:

®* New Content Management System and hardware upgrades

e SEStran is working with 21 Century (now named Journeo https://www.journeo.com), who were

appointed by the City of Edinburgh Council to provide the new Content Management System.

e Work is well advanced on the design on the new CMS including the SEStran regional system.

e Design for new screen layouts are being developed currently due to be complete end June 2020.

e Testing of RTPI SIRI feeds has been delayed due to COVID-19 with the reduction of operator trips.
Once passenger journeys reach a high-volume testing of the real time feeds versus scheduled
information will take place.

®  RTPI Electronic Ticketing Machines

e SEStran used the LEZ Public Transport Provision fund to provide grant aid for the purchase and
reassignment costs of electronic ticket machines (ETMs) for Telford Coaches and Peter Hogg.

e These were delivered to operators and are in use.

3.2 Thistle Assistance Programme @ @ @

SEStran has developed the Thistle Assistance Card and App to make using public transport easier for older
people and those with disabilities, illness or mobility issues. SEStran is currently undertaking work to
improve and evolve the programme.

Latest developments:

®  Journey Planner App - Phase One Proof of concept development

e SEStran is working with Scottish Enterprise and other funding bodies to explore potential funding
for Phase 2.

®  Thistle Assistance Programme Update In progress
e SEStran participated in an online panel on the 11" May with Disability Equality Scotland presenting

the Thistle Assistance new branding.
e Developed a Thistle Assistance survey to track awareness and engagement with Thistle Assistance.
e Continued to promote Thistle Assistance online, by social media and in print.

®  SEStran Website — Accessibility Regulations 2018 In progress
e In order to comply with legislation (Public Sector Bodies (Websites and Mobile Applications)(No.

2) Accessibility Regulations 2018) SEStran will be developing the Partnership website to improve

accessibility across the site for all users and at the same time improve the functionality of the site.
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https://www.journeo.com/en/market-solutions/information-estates/realtimepassengerinformation/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2018/952/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2018/952/contents/made

e Any new sites from September 2018 should be accessible after September 2019. Existing sites
should be made accessible from September 2020. Mobile applications after June 2021,

e Accessible means Complies with all Level A and AA Success Criteria of the Web Content Accessibility
Guidelines (WCAG) version 2.1;

e Design of the new SEStran site has been completed. Content is being updated and with final testing
to be done in June 2020.

®*  Marketing Communications Internship

e SEStran has been working in partnership with Inclusion Scotland to provide an Internship to work
on the Thistle Assistance program.

e Theinternship was extended with support from Inclusion Scotland and will now run up to July 2020.
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3.3 LLocal Rail Development Fund (LRDF) e @ @

The £2 million Scottish Government Local Rail Development Fund, was announced in February 2018, with

the aim of providing funding to develop community led options to improve local rail connections.

Latest developments:

®*  Newburgh Train Station

SEStran & Fife Council supported a successful bid from the Newburgh Train Station Group for the

first phase of funding.

£82,000 (exc. VAT) was secured to undertake a multi-model transport appraisal in the Newburgh

area with SYSTRA appointed to undertake the work in December 2018.

The transport interventions identified in the Case for Change that will be investigated further are:
1. Improved bus services to/from Newburgh

An ‘Express bus route’ through Newburgh

A New/Reopened train station in Newburgh

Provision to increase car sharing

New/Improved active travel routes

S

New/Improved active travel routes to outlying communities

7. River services - the provision of passenger service on the Tay Estuary
Phase 2 - The next stage of the study, the ‘Initial Appraisal’, of the 7 interventions is currently under
way.
Phase 2 will see the potential interventions being explored in more detail by qualitatively assessing
them against the five STAG criteria of Environments, Economy, Safety, Integration and
Accessibility/Social Inclusion.
The appraisal will also consider the options in the context of Feasibility, Affordability and Public
Acceptability.
Stakeholders were invited to complete a short on-line survey,
(www.newburghsustainabletransport.co.uk). The website provides further information on the
potential interventions and the overall study. 234 responses had been received by the closing
date of 31° May.
£17,000 has been claimed from the budget for the work to date.

®  Forth Freight Strategy

SEStran in partnership with Forth Ports made a successful application in June 2019 to the second
round of LRDF funding and will receive up to £150,000 to conduct the study.

The proposal is for a multi-modal freight study in the Port of Leith and other ports on the Forth to
explore key issues and opportunities whilst maximising the potential for existing infrastructure
(rail heads etc.).

After a successful tender evaluation process in April 2020 AECOM were appointed to undertake
the work.

The project inception meeting took place on the 27 April and the project is now underway.

Cllr Colin Davidson will Chair the project steering group.
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3.4 LEZ Public Transport Provision Fund 9@ @ @ @

Following the instatement of a Regional LEZ Stakeholder Group to cover the latest Edinburgh LEZ
developments, SEStran secured £205,000 funding from the LEZ Public Transport Provision Fund from
Transport Scotland in November 2019 for four projects which were delivered by 31 March 2020.

Despite the LEZ developments currently being delayed due to COVID-19, the study reports are relevant in a
wider context and can help inform the development of regional interventions to mitigate the impacts of
COVID-19 and associated social distancing requirements across the region. All reports can be viewed on the
SEStran website: https://sestran.gov.uk/news/sestran-strategic-studies/

Latest developments:

® Regional Park & Ride Strategic Study

The P&R Strategic Study is an evidence-based review of current P&R provision in the South East of

Scotland. It helps inform future investment priorities for the enhancement of P&R facilities and will
feed into the emerging rewrite of the SEStran Regional Transport Strategy.
®  Smart Ticketing Machines
e SEStran purchased ETMs for two of the region’s local bus operators, which will help facilitate real
time passenger information on the services operated.
e SEStran also utilised the LEZ funding for a hardware and software upgrade for the RTPI provided
on digital screens across the region.
*  Mobility Hub Strategic Study
e Based on the learnings from the SHARE-North project, SEStran developed the Mobility Hub
Strategic Study which scopes out the potential role for Mobility Hubs within the specific regional
context for the SEStran area. The study provides a framework for their implementation across the
South East of Scotland. For the purpose of the study, a Mobility Hub has been identified as “a
recognisable and easily accessible place which integrates different transport modes and
supplements them with enhanced facilities, services and information aimed at encouraging more
sustainable travel, creating a sense of place and improving journeys and travel choices.”
®  Demand Responsive Transport (DRT) Strategic Study
e The DRT study is a strategic review of DRT services in the SEStran area. Various challenges and
opportunities for the DRT sector have been identified and the study also developed options to
increase the resilience of DRT services and encourage innovation and service development. The
study will help inform the emerging RTS.
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4. European-funded Projects

4.1 SHARE-North

Interreg North Sea Region —Jan 2016 to Dec 2021 9@ @ @

SHARE-North focuses on shared mobility modes and their potential to address sustainable transport
challenges in the North Sea region. This includes developing, implementing, promoting and assessing car
sharing, bike sharing, ride sharing and other forms of shared mobility in urban and rural areas and
employment clusters.

Latest developments:

®*  Mobility Hubs In progress
e SEStran has been exploring various avenues to introduce Mobility Hubs to the SEStran region. In

doing so, SEStran builds on the expertise and support from the European partners.

e A Mobility Hub seeks to raise the profile of shared mobility (car club, bike-sharing, carsharing), by
integrating these modes of transport with existing public transport provision.

e The Mobility Hub Strategic Study developed through the LEZ Public Transport Provision Fund has
identified 8 suitable locations across the SEStran region for further consideration for the
development of Mobility Hubs.

®  Tripshare SEStran
e SEStran is reviewing Tripshare SEStran and is in the process of rebranding the website.

e  Online Partner Meeting May 2020 In progress
e SEStran participated in a successful online meeting with the SHARE-North partners on 12" May
2020 to discuss project activities and progress and any impacts and expected delays as a result of
COVID-19. The consortium is exploring whether an extension is feasible.
e SEStran also successfully presented the Mobility Hub Strategic Study at a SHARE-North webinar
hosted by CoMoUK on 14" May 2020, which was attended by 85 people.

4.3 SURFLOGH
Interreg North Sea Region — Jun 2017 to Oct 2020 e @ @

SURFLOGH aims to improve the role of logistics hubs in the network of urban logistics in the North Sea
Region. By introducing city labs, a transnational platform is created to promote innovation in city logistics.
These platforms will bring together different actors to exchange knowledge, work on innovative pilot
projects and implement results within policy strategies and the urban logistics system.

Latest developments:

®  Development of business case with Edinburgh Napier University In progress
e SEStran is leading on a work package along with Edinburgh Napier University Transport Research

Institute (TRI), developing business models for urban freight hubs.
e The 2020 STAR Conference was cancelled due to COVID-19, but the research paper is being
adapted for other conference submission in the future.

®  Edinburgh Pilot — ZEDIFY In progress
11
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The pilot is up and running and currently delivering up to one pallet worth of small packets in
central Edinburgh from a site west of Haymarket station.

SEStran and Zedify in partnership with stakeholders are exploring setting up a new hub in south
Edinburgh.

ZEDIFY have entered into a UK partnership with Click It Local (https://www.clickitlocal.co.uk/) to do
deliveries, this will be trailed in the South Edinburgh hub.

e Online Partner Meeting May 2020

SEStran participated in a successful online meeting with other partners on the 19" of May.

Due to COVID-19 impacts on the project it was decided to cancel the upcoming project end
conference in September in Mechelen (Belgium).

It was also decided that a 6-month extension to the project should be proposed to the Interreg
North Sea Joint Secretariat to allow more research on the pilots and mitigate COVID-19 impacts.
The extension would allow the end conference to be held in May 2021 in Mechelen.

4.4 BLING e@ 9 @
Interreg North Sea Region —Jan 2019 to Dec 2021 —

Blockchain is a key enabling technology that will underpin efforts to deliver innovative services under the
Digital Agenda for Europe. The BLockchain IN Government (BLING) project focuses on providing one of the
first dedicated platforms to bring these tools and approaches into local and regional services. SEStran will

be developing a pilot with the University of Edinburgh, which will showcase innovative use of the technology

in a transport environment.

Latest developments:

®* Development of Edinburgh Pilot

The Design Informatics team at the University of Edinburgh team supported by SEStran is
prototyping ways to create Location Based Smart Contracts — agreements about the location and
relations of smart objects in space that allow conditions such as proximity or co-location to trigger
actions like financial transfers or opening physical locks. These systems are backed with
blockchains, to explore new technigues to make location data secure without being invasive.

The next stage of the research will be to develop a Smart Contracts interface that can be easily use
and adapted in the ‘real world’.

After a successful presentation to the partners in May the next stage of the work is underway.

e  Online Partner Meeting May 2020

SEStran participated in a successful online meeting with other partners over two days on the 12
& 13" of May.
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4.5 PriMaas$s @
Interreg Europe — Aug 2019 to Jan 2023 e@ 9 il

Mobility-as-a-Service (MaaS) is a concept that changes the way people travel and pay for mobility services.
The main vision of PriMaas is to promote Maa$ and incorporate wider societal goals through interregional
collaboration, sharing best practices, and policy development.

Latest developments:

®  PriMaaS Regional Stakeholder Group In progress
e Following the first Regional Stakeholder Group, which was held on 15 January 2020, SEStran has

been working with the PriMaaS consortium to establish the current levels of MaaS$ integration in
the SEStran area.

®  Preparation of Baseline Assessment Report In progress
e Due to the COVID-19 situation, project activities have moved online, and SEStran is working with
partners to feed into the Baseline Assessment Report, which is being developed by the
consortium as a whole.
e  Online Partner Meeting April 2020 In progress

e SEStran participated in a successful online partner meeting, hosted by the lead partner on 24"
April 2020. SEStran provided an update on project activities and the consortium discussed the
impacts of the current COVID-19 crisis.

e The conference which was planned to take place in Liguria in April 2020 got cancelled, and the
consortium is exploring options to move project activities and Exchange of Experience events
online, such as through webinars. The first webinar is likely to take place this summer.

e The consortium is also exploring whether an extension can be sought to deliver all planned
activities.

4.6 CONNECT
Interreg North Sea Region — Oct 2019 to Mar 2022 @ @ @

CONNECTing North Sea Region’s TEN-T nodes — Support intermodality growth in the North Sea Region
through smart efficiency enhancements. The overall objective is to support smart intermodality growth in
the NSR through efficiency enhancements. The project focuses on implementation of new smart processes
and working tools (smart intermodality) and development of strategies for smart efficiency enhancements
(smart involvement). https://northsearegion.eu/north-sea-connect

Latest developments:
®*  Project Application
e Afinal application for continuation of the project has been made by the new partnership group to
the Interreg North Sea Joint Secretariat and is awaiting approval — it is expected to be approved
with the project starting in June 2020.

e SEStran will be leading on a work package based around marketing and communications.

13

77



5. SEStran forums & upcoming events

5.1 SEStran Forum Meetings 9@ @ @ @

SEStran hosts three different forum groups which are held twice a year. The aim of these forums is to
provide a platform for interested parties to come together and to formulate a regional voice in various
transport-related matters.

Upcoming meetings:

®  Equalities and Access to Healthcare Forum
The next meeting will be held on the 3™ of June 2020 and will be online.

®* Integrated Mobility Forum
Due to COVID-19 the April meeting was cancelled. The meeting will be rescheduled for later in the year.

® |ogistics and Freight Forum
Due to COVID-19 the May meeting was cancelled. The meeting will be rescheduled for later in the year.
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